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          Mujeres: Women in the Béxar Archives, 1735-1836   

 
 

                                                
1 Location where document(s) originated. See Table-A for key to abbreviations. 
2 Present-day Rapides, a parish in central Louisiana. 

Name 
 

Subject Place1  Year. Month 
Days 

Microfilm 
Roll: 
Frames 

Abrego,  
  María Antonia de 

Suit against Félix Estrada for defamation of 
character 

SF de BX, E. 1809.1114 -
1809.1117 

  43: 353-61 

— Proceedings on her petition to investigate gambling 
and loss of two hundred pesos by husband, Miguel 
Flores 

SF de BX   1810.0117   43: 912-24 

— Owed debt by Manuel Vidales MNC   1831.0303 139: 180-81 
Abundes,  
   María Luisa 

Case against Doroteo Guel for wounding her BX, E.   1826.0414-
1826.0419 

  91: 601-16 
 

Acosta, 
Marihilda (Mari 
Jila) 

Debt owed to Antoine Flores Rapide,2  E. 1800.1003   29: 720 

— — [Rapide], E. 1800.1022 29: 755 
— Debt owed to Flores and Alexander Fulton Rapide 1801.0609 30: 101-02 
Adame,   
  Bárbara 

Legality of proposed marriage to Manuel Peña LB 1825.0123 79: 139:40 

Aguilera, 
   María Angela 

Pedro Prado advises her to leave her residence NAC 1812.0901 52: 371-72 

Aguirre, 
   María Dolores de 

Widow of Dionicio del Valle; requests military 
pension 

MNC   1825.0405 80: 388 

— — MX 1825.0423 80: 808-12  
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(3) 
— — MNC 1825.0510 81: 142-43 
— — MNC 1825.0801 82: 992-93 
— — RG 1825.0808 83: 186 
— — RG 1825.0813 83: 327-35 

(1) 
— — MX 1825.0921 84: 462 
— —   SC 1826.0618 94: 127-28 
Alcántara,  
 María Olaya 
(Olalla) 

She and Nasario Lerma transferred to Béxar, both 
having been captives of Tancahue (Tonkawa) 
Indians 

LB 1816.0619 56: 689-91 

— Orders for sumaria against Vicente Rodríguez, her 
associate 

BX 1816.0622 56: 701-702 

— Makes claim against Maríano López’ wife [Luísa 
Gertrudis de Rúa] 

[BX] 1817.0817 59: 259-60 

Alemán,  
  María Josefa 

Petitions to return to Texas RG, E. 1817.1014 -
1817.1017  

59: 676-78 
 

Alsop,  
   Ana 

Allegiance to Spanish government NAC 1809.0816 42: 628-32 
(3) 

Ancira,  
  Gertrudis 

Consent to marriage of Rafaela del Toro and Rivera 
to Dionicio Rivera 

MNC 1824.0122 76: 234-235 
(2) 

Anda,  
  Simona de 

Leonardo Pérez requests to marry her BX 1819.0209 62: 708-09 

Angelita  (Indian 
girl)  
 

María Jesusa Leal’s charges against her San Juan  
Capistrano  
M. 

1817.0507 58: 543-44 
 

Anita Her personal letter MX 1831.1005 145: 85-88 
Anpara,   
  María 

Widow in need of food and necessities 
 

[San Juan  
Capistrano 
M.] 

n.d. 168: 221-22 

Apolonia  
   

Mother of Moreno; summoned to testify with 
Josefa Esparza 

BX 1826.0809 95:31 
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3 Settlement of the inheritance of property over a number of generations. 
4 Filibustering expedition (invasion) of 1812-1813 led by Bernardo Gutiérrez de Lara and Agustus Magee that resulted in 
the temporary defeat of Spanish forces in Texas. 
5 San Luis Potosí, capital of the state of San luis Potosí located in north-central Mexico. 
6 Leona Vicario, temporary name for Saltillo to honor Leona Vicario, heroine of the Mexican War for Indepencence. 

Araujo,  
  Sebastiana de  

Of Havana; clause in will on entail3  
Río Grande de Meyriles Foundation 

Aranjuez, 
CHI, E. 

1800.0418 - 
1800.0819 

29: 447-48 
 

Arciniega, 
  Zenovia, María 

Slave; sold by María Macedonia Pérez to José 
Miguel de Arciniega 

BX 1820.0715 64: 790-91 
 

Arellanes,  
  Josefa 

Petitions for widow’s pension BX 1817.0410 58: 306-34 
(2) 
 

Armas,  
  Antonia Rosalía 
de 

Sues Pedro Granados for divison of family estate  SF, E. 1782.0301   
1782.0302 

15: 42-44 
 

Arocha,  
  Ana María (de) 
(Ann María)  

Petitions for return of  property lost during Anglo-
American invasion4 

BX [1818.1101] 62: 91-93 

— — San Juan 
Capistrano 
M. 

1818.1114 62: 341-45 
(1) 

— Widow of Joaquín Leal; petitions for widow’s 
pension 

LB 1827.0409 102: 265-66  

— — BX 1827.0418 102: 494-500 
(6) 

— — SAL 1827.0723 105: 645-46 
— — SAL 1827.1103 108- 946-51 

(1) 
— — SAL 1828.0107 110: 706 
— — SLP5 1828.0509 113: 485-87 
— — LVC6 1828.0614 114:393-95 
— — BX,  E. 1829.1105 - 126: 541-42 
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1830.0412 
— —   In Libro borrador, E. [BX] 1827.0517 - 

1827.1228 
103:496-507 

— In Record of petitions and decrees concerning land 
grants, E. 

[BX] 1828.0313 - 
1828.0827 

112. 289-300 

— Land petitions filed by her, María Calvilla, Vicente 
Cepeda and José Antonio Navarro 

BX 1828.1014 117: 266-73 
(2) 

— — BX 1828.1029 117: 565-66 
— — LVC 1828.1119 117: 956-57 
Arocha, 
  Gertrudis 

Juan José Hernández demands that she pay for 
horse borrowed fromFelipe Flores 

GOL 1832.0517 150: 74-75 

Arocha,  
  María  

[José María] Viesca’s orders on her petition SAL 1828.0209 111: 582-87 
(1) 

Arocha,  
  María de Jesús 

Juan Cardona requests permission to marry her BX 1829.0625 123: 745-46 
 

Arocha,  
  María Ignacia de 

Payment of damages for loss of cow BX, E. 1800.0603 29: 515-16 
 

Arocha,  
  María Trinidad  

Her personal letter to Ignacio Arocha on family 
matters 

Rosas 1830.0506 130: 227-29   

Arreola,  
  Teresa  

Taxes paid by her and others for dances and 
grocery stores 

BX. E. 1824.0201 - 
1824.0229 

76: 318-25
  

Asturias, Princess       
  María Luísa de 
(infanta) 

Birth CHI, E. 
 

1778.0515 
 

12: 282 
 

— — CHI 1778.0515 -
1778.1014 

12: 283-84 

Ávila,  
  María Rafaela de 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo- 
American invasion 

SF de BX [1818.1109] 62: 193-212 
(1) 

Ayamonte,  
  María Josefa  

Of La Bahía; Petitions by her and Tomás  Macías SAL 1822.1119  
 

73: 552-56 
(2) 

— — BX 1822.1225 73: 794-812 
(18) 
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7 Bernardo Bonavía y Zapata—see Table 2.  
8 Erasmo Seguin. See Table 2 for key to names identified wtth initials. 

Barbosa, 
  María Josefa 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1111 62: 261-86 
(1) 

Barrera y Cos, 
  Juana de la 

Casimiro León gives details about her SRO 1826.0331 90: 958-60 

Barrera, 
  Josefa 

Recovery of her shawl from Hilario Mauricio  and 
its remittance [to Béxar] with Juan Treviño 
    

LAR 1833.0505 156: 294 

Barrera, 
  Juana 

Military pension SAL 1824.0511 77: 26-27 

Barrera de García, 
  Gertrudis 

Welcomes Ana María García de Trespalacios to 
Texas 

LB 1822.1027 73: 287 

— Refuses to pay Francisco Garcia’s debts GOL 1835.0510 165: 65-73 
(2) 

Barron, 
  María Juana 

Suit against Francisco Rodríguez for using her 
horse 

[BX?] n.d. 168: 566 

Becerra, 
  Guadalupe 

Wife of Domingo Ríos; [Bonavia’s]7  letter about 
her 

[BX] 1810.0715 45: 1048-49 
(2) 

Becerra (Becera, 
Beezera) de 
Seguín,  
   María Josefa  
Agustina 

Asks Joséfa de Iturri to be included in banquet to 
welcome first lady of Texas [Ana María García de 
Trespalacios] 

[BX] 1822.0825 72: 644 

— Correspondence with husband, E. Seguín,8 while he 
was deputy to national congress; includes 
information on political affairs, family affairs, 
finances and his return 

MX 1823.1213 75: 914 

— — BX 1823.1224 75: 935-36 
— — MX 1823.1229 75: 946-47 
— — MX 1824.0107 76: 126-27 
— — BX 1824.0220 76: 413-15 
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9Querétaro, capital of the state of Querétaro located in north-central Mexico. 

— — MX 1824.0221 76: 421-22 
— — BX 1824.0723 77: 534-35 
— — MX 1824.0811 77: 663-64 

(1) 
— — BX 1824.0906  77: 780-81 
— — MX 1824.0908 77: 799-800 
— — MX 1824.0921 77: 872-74 
— — BX 1824.1018 78: 133-34 
— — MX 1824.1020 78: 141-43 
— — MX 1824.1103 78: 275-76 
— — BX [1824?] 168: 255-57 
— — MX 1825.0126 79: 169-70 
— — QT9 1825.0302 79: 684 
— — BX 1825.0402 80: 322-23  
— — BX 1825.0412 80: 510-11 
— She and Gaspar Flores place bonds for E. Seguín BX 1828.0622 168: 446 
— — BX 1832.0706 151: 410-11 
— Pesonal letter to [E. Seguín] BX 1835.0312 164: 410-11 
Benítez, 
  Luisa 

Sumaria against her, Facundo de la Garza and 
others for attempted escape to U.S., E.   

LB, E. 1821.0409 - 
1821.0415 

67: 302-19  

— — LB 1821.0427 67: 442-54 
(3) 

Benítez, 
  María Casimira 

Case for divorce from Juan José Flores BX 1808.0224 37: 749 

— — BX 1808.0225 37: 751 
— — LB 1808.0305 37: 809 
— Case against her for meat found at her home; 

includes witnesses Francisco Granados and Pablo 
Ríos 

SF de BX 1818.0126 60: 407-08 

— — SA de VAL 1818.0128 60: 411-419 
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10Atascosito, a well-known crossing at the Colorado River on the road to east Texas. 

Benitez, 
  Petra 

Grocery accounts of  her, Tio Becerra, Gregorio 
Esparza, Antonio Carpintero and Figeroa 

BX, E. 1833.0101 -
1833.0127 

154: 535-36 

Benoit,  
(Benua, Venua)  
María Magdalena 

Settlement petitions of her, Sebastián Venua, 
Francisco Mercantel and Daniel Boone 

ATS10 1806.0611 34: 768-72 

— Denied settlement at Trinidad de Salcedo and 
expelled to Louisiana with Thomas Daillalet and 
others 

BX 1809.0124 40: 22 

— — BX 1809.0204 40: 95-96 
— — TDS 1809.0222 40: 266-71 

(1) 
— — TDS 1809.0322 40: 694-705 

(5)  
Bernal, 
  Teresa 

Custody case for child given in infancy to 
Francisco Castañeda and now claimed by her 

BX 1828.1022 117: 418-19 

Blanco, 
  María Antonia 

Complaint against husband, Manuel Aldrete, for 
neglect 

MNT 1825.0826 83: 693-95 

— — SAL 1825.0910  84: 159-62 
(1) 

— — BX 1825.1002 84: 802-03 
— — BX 1826.0921 97: 61 
— — BX 1826.0926 97: 133-36 
— — MNT 1826.1027  97: 989-98 

(4) 
— Her petition remitted GOL 1831.0623  142: 201-18 

(9) 
Blanco, 
  Petra 

Approval of her petition for money of late husband, 
Miguel Estrada; pension 

MNC 1825.0215 79: 503 

— — MNC 1825.0216 79: 507-08 
(1) 

— — MX 1825.0305 79: 729 
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— — MNC 1825.0322 80: 104 
— — MNC 1825.0323 80: 150-52 

(1) 
Boone, 
  Carmen 

Widow of Daniel Boone; her case against Rafael 
Muñoz 

LB 1817.0504 58: 531-33 
(1) 

— — BX 1817.0515 58: 616 
— — MNC 1817.0531 58: 731-32 
— Andrés Nandín petitions to marry her SF 1827.1013 108: 279-94 

(3) 
— — LAR 1827.1016 108: 372-86 

(4) 
Borrego,  
  María del Rosario    
  Macaria Raquel 

Petitions to move to Refugio or Monterrey LB 1820.0720 64: 810-11 

Bosques, 
  María Leonarda 

Her and Juan José Zambrano’s case against José 
Manuel García for slander 

BX, E. 1830.1025 - 
[1835.0620] 

135: 698-706 

Briseno,  
  Eligia 

Summoned as witness BX 1826.0731 95: 526-27 

Buena Hernández, 
  María 

Escort GOL 1831.0506 140: 807-12 
(3) 

— To be sent to Béxar GOL 1831.0904 144: 253-54  
Buenal, 
  Antonia 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1111 62: 261-86 
(2) 

Buentello,  
(Bontello) 
  María Antonia 

Petitions for widow’s pension. LB 1826.0227 89: 928-32  

— — BX 1826.0316 90: 519-29 
(4) 

— — MX 1826.0427 92: 144-47 
(1) 

— — LB 1826.0623 94: 326-32 
(4) 

— — BX 1826.0701 94: 624 
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— — BX 1826.07? 95: 532-35 
(2) 

— — MX 1826.0812 96: 03-18 (1) 
— — LB 1826.1031 98: 120 
Bustamante, 
  Creszina 

Widow in need of food and necessities SJCM n.d. 168: 221-22 

Bustillo, 
  María Josefa 

Father Francisco Gómez Moreno’s letter to San 
Fernando ayuntamiento on jurisdiction in her case 

BX 1792.0223 22: 98 

Cafee, (Caffu) 
  María 

Land petitions by her, Manuel de los Santos Coy 
and others 

NAC 1827.1126 109: 556-62 
(5) 

Calvillo, (Calvilla) 
  María 

Power of attorney from Antonio Baca to collect 
debts at Nacogdoches 

SF 1806.0506 34: 632-33 

— Confiscation of tobacco planted by her, José Darío 
Zambrano and others 

BX 1815.1106 55: 963-67  

— Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

San Juan  
Capistrano 
M. 

1818.1114 62: 341-45 
(3) 

— To be paid for horse and colt by Diego del Toro San Juan  
Capistrano 
M. 
 

1823.0311 74: 353-54  

— In Record of petitions and decrees concerning land 
grants 

[BX], E. 1828.0313 -
1828.0827 

112: 289-300 

— Land petitions filed by her, Ana María Arocha and 
others 

BX 1828.1014 117: 266-73 
(2) 

— — BX 1828.1029 117: 565-66 
— — LVC 1828.1119 117: 956-57 
— Presence of Rafael Peña and others at her ranch BX 1831.0409 139: 998 -

1015 (4) 
— Francisco Rojo’s petition about her land BX 1831.1122 146: 188-89 
— Search for her and Juan Montes’ land titles BX 1831.1123 146: 209-18 

(5) 
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11 State in southern Mexico. 

— — NAC 1831.1206 146: 477-82 
(2) 

Calvo,  
  Josefa 

List of goods requested by her and Pedro Cárdenas N.p. [1822] 73: 896 

Canaria,  
  Tía   

Report of cavalry guard Paso de R. de 
Tia Canaria 

1820.0515 64: 343 

Cano,  
  Leonor 

Her disposition remitted BX 1815.0809 55: 509 
 

Cantu,  
  María Felipa 

Personal letter to José María Vasquez Morelos11 1835.0513 165: 97-99 
 

Carabeyo,  
  María Dolores 

Petitions for property left by her husband BX, E. 1790.1204 - 
1790.1205 
 

20: 1030-31 

Carmona,  
  María Polonia 

Fight with María del Refugio de la Garza BX, E. 1814.0819 - 
1814.0825  

54: 140-50 
 

Carmona,  
  María Ursina 

Vicente Flores advises here to leave Béxar at night 
as troops begin to approach 

NAC 1812.0901 52: 368-70 
 

Carrasco, María    
   Antonia 

Agustín del Moral petitions to marry her GUE 1832.0906 152: 970-86 
(5) 

Carrasco,  
  María Gertrudis   

Daughter of Pedro Nolasco Carrasco; marriage 
license to Manuel de Espadas revoked 

MNC and SF 
de BX, E. 

1791.0311 - 
1791. 0316 

21: 249-50 

Carrera,  
  Isabel  

Employed at Béxar military hopital BX, E. [1808.0103] 37: 413 

Carrillo,  
  Guadalupe  
(María Josefa) 

Testimony regarding sister's estate [María Josefa] 
Carrillo 
                    

[SF de BX] 1809.02[21?] 
1809.0228 

170: 484-87 

Carrillo,  
  María Ana 

Certifications of her marriage and funeral records 
 

BX 1803.1114 31: 787 

Carrillo,  [Carrio] 
  María Josefa 

Death SF 1809.0221  
 

40: 255-57 
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— Inventory of her estate in possession of Ignacio 
Lucero; includes testmony of sister Guadalupe 
Carrillo, and reference to testimony of Reynaldo 
Treviño 

[SF de BX] 1809.02[21?] 
1809.0228   
 

170:485-87 

Carrillo de los 
Santos Coy,  
María Concepción 
(Same as Seguin 
María Josefa?) 

Daughter of Fernando Carrillo and María Eulogia 
de los Santos Coy; granted permission fo marry 
soldier of Béxar Company 

BX 1829.0114 119: 201 

— Román Zúñiga requests permission to marry her BX 1829.0117 119: 318 
Carrillo y Seguín,   
María Josefa 

Personal letter to [E. Seguín] on arrival of Barón de 
Bastrop in Saltillo 

SAL 1824.1114 78: 315-16 

— Personal letter for [E,] Seguín] acknowledging 
receipt of letters and discussing illness in family 

SAL 1824.1211 78: 450-52 

Carvajal, 
   María 

Her suit against Josefa Hernández for possession of 
land 

SF, E. 1770.0323 -          
1772.0222  

10: 700-15 

Carvajal,  
  María de Jesús 

Her suit against Antonia Rodríguez for money 
owed by Maríano Rodríguez   

[BX] [1816] 57: 710 

Carvajal y Peña,  
  María de Jaén 

Requests family support from husband Maríano 
Rodríguez 
 

BX 1829.0626 123: 773-75 

Casillas,  
  Guadalupe 

Widow in need of food and necessities [San Juan  
Capistrano 
M.] 

n.d. 168: 221-22 

Castañeda,  
  Josefa 

Royal decree on her divorce from Marqués de 
Casacastillo 

El Pardo, 
Arispe, E. 

1787.0322 - 
1787.0912 

18: 92-94 

Castañeda,  
  María Loreto 

Defends son, José María  del Moral, against theft 
charges 

SF de BX 1830.0911 134: 336-38 

Castañeda,  
  María Teresa de 

Widow of José Santoja; records requested by her 
certified 

[BX], E. 1800.0224 29: 371-72 

Castaño,  
  María Andrea 

Juan José Treviño reports her debt  and escape LAR 1831.0212 138: 710-11 

Castañón,  Requests help in return of runaway daughter [BX] 1832.1119 154: 13-14 
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  María Petra 
Castellanos,  
Dolores 

Inquires of whereabouts of husband, Maríano 
Guerrero 

GV 1832.0612 150: 717-18 

Castro,  
  Ana María 

Inquires about marriage of Mariquita Castro to José 
María  Peña 

N.p. [1830.0125] 128: 83-84 

Castro,  
  Ancelma  

Her servant wounded by Mexía of 6th Infantry 
Company of 12th Battallion   
   

[BX] [1826.1201] 98: 1000-01 

Castro,  
  Francisca 

Wife of Juan Pérez de Arze; to receive part of his 
salary 

SLP 1827.1001 107: 675-79 
(1) 

Castro,  
  Ignacia de 

Her suit against Marcos de Castro for payment for 
land 
 

SF, E. 1771.0919 11: 52-53 

— — SF, E. 1771.1017 11: 57-58 
— — BX, E. 1774.0603 11: 414-15 
Castro,  
  Mariquita 

Ana María Castro inquires about marriage of her to 
José María Peña                

N.p. [1830.0125] 128: 83-84 

Catalina 
 

Letter to her announcing payment of bills of 
exchange 

BX 1828.0621 114: 582-83 

Cecilia  
 

José Antonio Huízar to appear before Gabriel de 
Arcos with her, Josefa Martos and Inés 

[BX] 1815.0317 54: 867 

Cepeda,  
  Manuela de 

Reports foreigner in district of Laredo SF de BX, E. 1810.1203 - 
1810.1204 

47: 448-51 

Cepeda.  
  María Josefa, 

She reports escape of servant with horse LB 1826.1124 98: 754-55 

Cerda,  
  Josefa 

Escapes to Natchitoches to appeal for U.S. 
protection 

NAC 1810.0921 46: 716-22 
(3) 

— — LB 1810.1005 46: 841-43 
(2) 

— — LB 1810.1005 – 
1810.1008 

46: 844-46 
(2) 

Chacón,  
  Josefa María 

Petition denied MX 1826.0321 90: 688-89  
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12 Location unknown. 

— — BX 1826.0830 96: 502-09 
(2) 

Chapa, 
   María Juliana 

Personal  letter to Juan de Castaneda MAT 182?.0514 130: 508-09 

Charli,  
  María Santa de 
los Angeles  

Sells house to María de Estrada 
 
 

SF 1791.0110 21: 879-80 

— — SF, E. 1791.1110 21: 881-82 
Chávez,  
  María Antonia 

Her receipt for and list of horses sold to S. López SPG12 1825.1213 86: 686-87 

Clontier, 
  Rachel 

Sells slave to Manuel Prudhomme NAT 1786.0516 17: 447-48 

Collantes,  
  Margarita 

Affidavit that she and her brother, Cosme, appeared 
in court 

BX 1835.0207 164: 55 

Conitrío,   
  María Gertrudis 
(Getrudis) 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 
       

SF de BX [1818.1109] 62: 193-212 
(3) 

Contreras,  
  María Antonia 

Petitions for release of husband, Francisco 
Rodríguez 

BX, E. 1834.0605 - 
1834.0614 

161: 850-55 

Córdoba,  
  María Asención 

Case against her by José Nazario Ramírez for 
breach of contract 

SF de BX, E. 1810.0615 - 
1810.0719 

45: 703-08  

Córdoba,  
  María Manuela 
(Córdova) 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1130 62: 433-37 
(2) 

Cortés,  
Ana Francisca 
(Cortéz) 

Petition remitted NAC 1830.0227 128: 772-75 
(2) 

— Her house to be moved so that streets may be 
straightened 

NAC 1830.0525 130: 686-718 
(5) 

Cortés,  
  Juana 

Higinio Tejada requests permission to marry her BX 1835.0711 165: 904 
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Courbiére, 
  Alejandra 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1109 62: 138-92 
(5) 

Courbiére, 
  María Josefa 
(Cubier) 

Unauthorized marriage to Miguel Díaz de Luna BX, E. 1811.0427 - 
1811.0428 

48: 539-42 
(4) 

— Horse claimed by her sent by José Ramírez to 
Béxar 

LB 1820.1024 65: 565-66 

Cruz, 
  María de la 

Behavior BX, E. 1818.0110 - 
1818.0112 

60: 306-14 

Cruz, 
  María del Pilar de 
la 

Daughter of Tomás Cortez; permission to marry 
Enríque Cervera 

BX 1827.1117  
 

109: 352 

— — BX 1827.1127 109: 420 
     
Cruz, 
  María Petra de la 

Daughter of Margarita del Toro; permission to 
marry Claudio Villareal 

BX 1832.0214  148: 101-02 

— — BX 1832.0215 148: 116 
Cruz,  
  María Secundina 

Daughter of María Antonia Sosa; case against 
Miguel de los Santos for raping her 

BX 1809.0524 41: 470 

— — CHI 1809.0701 42: 12-14 
— — BX 1809.0731 42: 425-26 
— — BX [1809.0802] 42: 459-61 
— — N.p. [1809] 171: 199-200 
Cuéllar, 
  Antonia de 

Division of inherited property and rights of way for 
roads and acequias signed by her, Pedro Granados 
and others 

[BX?]  n.d. 168: 328-29 

Curbelo, 
  Juana (Curvelo) 

Baltasar Flores’ testimony in limpieza de sangre of 
José Clemente de Arocha, grandson of Francisco de 
Arocha and her 

[SF de BX] n.d. 170: 419-21 

Curbelo, 
  María Teresa 

She and Manuel Pérez grant freedom to slave, 
María Huísar 

SF 1808.1215 39: 671-73 
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13 “Evidently a “camp at Trinidad.” 

— Petitions for return of property confiscated from her 
husband who died in cause of independence in 
1813 

BX 1822.0920 72: 909-10 

— Grants permission for daughter, María Alejandra 
Pérez, to marry Santiago Hernández 

BX 1829.1203 126: 1013 

Curbelo, 
  Mariana 

Her suit against Francisco Vicente Flores for stock 
taken from her ranch 

SF, E. 1783.0308 - 
1786.1123 

15: 307-16 

Dávalos,  
  María Félix 

Spouse of José María Torices; monthly allotment 
from his salary    

SLP 1830.1213 137: 01-03 

— — SLP 1831.1026 145: 562-64 
Delgado, 
Alejandra 
   

Juana María Solís’ permission for her  to marry 
Jesús Arrañaga 

BX 1835.0506 
 

165: 29 

Díaz,  
  Carmela  

José Antonio Bustillo's case against her, whose 
daughter he adopted 

BX 1817.0817  59: 257-258 

— — BX 1817.0828 59: 375 
Domínguez,  
  María 

Arrives with Diego  Domínguez and others from 
Adaes 

C. en TRN13 1819.1202 63: 545-49 

Domínguez de 
   Paniagua, Petra 

Personal  letter to Ramón Paniagua Jalapa 1835.0725 166: 52-53 

Dribread,  María 
(Dribead) 

In Pedro Walker's translation of documents Mazatlán 1810.0418 44: 798-809 

Egurrola,  
 María Francisca 

At  San Fernando de Rosas; to be sent goods taken 
to Morelos by Eusebio de la Garza 

BX 1829.1130 126: 927 

Elbet,  
  Juana 

At Bayou Pierre with two children; allegiance to 
Spanish government by her, John Leathem and 
others 

NAC 1809.0819 42: 697 

Enríquez, 
  Juana Gertrudis 
(Henríquez) 

Mariano Cosío protests her arrest by alcalde BX 1826.0702 94: 650-52 

— — BX 1826.0702 94: 653-54 
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14 Written proceedings of an legal investigation consisting of a sequence of sworn testimony. 

— — N. p. [1826] 99: 758-59 
— Arrest of and sumaria14 against Cosío for wounding 

her 
NAC 1829.0526 122: 748-49 

— — NAC 1829.0608 123: 328-53 
(2) 

Escalante,  
  Rosa 

Requests  certificate of marrige to Maríano Pura 
 

RG 1818.0410 60: 829-30 

Esparza,  
  Josefa 

She and Apolonia summoned to testify 
 

BX 1826.0809 95: 931 

Esparza,  
  María  

Removal requested 
 

SJCM 1821.0521 67: 632-33 

Esparza,  
  María Isabel 

Petitions for payment of oxen lost while husband 
was transferring artillery from Nacogdoches to 
Béxar 

BX 1810.1113 47: 239-41 
(2) 

— — CHI 1810.1211 47: 491-501 
(9) 

Esquivel,  
  María Albina 

Trip to Béxar BX 1808.0921 38: 0713 

Estrada, 
  Concepción de       

Widow of Luís Maríano Menchaca; sues brother-
in-law, José Menchaca, and Félix Menchaca to 
execute husband’s will 

SF de BX, E. 1807.0612 -  
1810.0404 

36: 235-316 

— — BX 1807.1203 37: 0278 
— — BX 1807.1214 37: 304-05 
— — [BX] 1808.0201 37: 615-16 
— — [BX] 1810 169: 83 
—  Legacies of her, María Antonia Ruiz and Félix 

Menchaca 
BX 1829.0519 122: 546-47 

Estrada,  
  María de 

Buys house from María Santa de los Angeles Charli SF 1791.0110  
 

21: 879-80 

— — SF, E. 1791.1110 21: 881-82 
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15 San Juan Bautista del Río Grande: a complex of a presideio, three missions and a civilian settlement located near present 
Guerrero Coahuila. 

— José Joaquín de los Angeles’ case against her for 
inheritance 

BX, E 1796.0806 - 
1796.1124 

26: 686-745 

Estrada, María         
  Gertrudis de 

To join her husband, Pedro Lambremont SF, BX, E. 1795.0419 - 
1795.0505 

25: 427-28 

 — — 
 

BX 1795.0506 25: 493-94 

Estrada,  
  María Iginia 

Military pension MNT 1814.1004 54: 288-99 
(3) 

Estrada,  
  Micaela 

Petitions against foreigner Dimetre LB 1827.0816 106: 404-08 
(2) 

Eustacia, (doña)             Pedro Rodríguez reports steps taken to pursue 
Indians 

R. de Doña 
Eutacia 

1829.0416 121: 638-39 

Fajardo,  
  María Antonia 
(Faxardo) 

Her monthly allotment from José María Tavizón’s 
salary by Durango Commissary 

[Durango], 
SLP, BX, E. 

1826.1005 - 
1826.11? 
 

98: 932-33 

Falcón y Pérez, 
  María de la 
Trinidad 

Her mother, María Josefa Pérez, authorizes her to 
collect money from José Antonio Salinas for horse 

NAC 1827.1108 109: 112-13 

Fernando,  
  María  

Celebrations upon birth CHI 1785.0225 16:465 

— — BX 1785.0416 16: 587-88 
Fierro,  
  María de la  
  Candelaria 
(slave) 

Three contracts of her sale; succesive owners were 
Antonio Morales, Julián de Arocha, José Manuel 
Granados and Antonio Rodríguez Baca 

SF, San Juan 
Bautista del 
RG15, E. 

1792.0124 - 
1793.0201 

22: 31-36 

Flores,  
  Benita  

Petition for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 
     

San Juan 
Capistrano 
M. 

1818.1114 62: 341-45 
(2) 

Flores,  
  Gerónima  

Petitions Manuel Sandoval's support SF de Rosas 1831.0715 142: 863-64  
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Flores,  
  Juana Francisca 

Petitions for payment of debt incurred by husband, 
soldier of the Agua Verde Company 

RG 1825.0901 83: 843 

Flores,  
  María 
Concepción 

Informs María Josefa de Herrera of death of latter’s 
husband, Nicolás Días of Flying company of 
Alamo in Texas 

MNC n.d. 168: 278-79 

Flores,  
  María del Carmen 

She, Albina Patiño and others petition for widow’s 
pension 

RG 1826.0404 91: 195-206 
(8) 

— — 
 

SC 1826.0423 92: 18-25  
(3) 

— — SF 1827.0802 105: 975-95 
(10) 

Flores,  
 María 
Encarnación 

Regarding case for divorce from José Manuel 
Delgado 

BX, E. 1809.0807 42: 0504 

Flores,  
  María Eulogia 

Testifies on Antonio Barrera's alleged theft BX, E. 1834: 0425 
1834-0429 

161: 228-30 

Flores,  
  María Gertrudis 

Expresses pleasure upon Ana María García [de 
Trespalacios]’ arrival in Texas 

LB  1822.1029 73: 293 

— Francisco García’s complaint against her LB 1826.0914 96: 881-87 
(2) 

Flores,  
  María Josefa 

Cattle brand registered by Francisco Padilla MNT 1815.0109 54: 0633 

— Petitions for release of son, Ventura Tejada TRN 1819.1202 63: 545-49 
Flores,  
  Rosa 

Wife of Dionisio García de Rivera; burial record MNC, E 1824.0320 - 
1824.0324 

76: 666-75 
(2) 

Flores,  
  Rosalia  

Certificate of marriage to José Antonio Alborado; 
birth ceertificate of son, José Honoré 

Opelousas 1810.0826 46: 509-10 

Flores,  
  Silvestra 

Petition for return of property lost during Anglo- 
American invasion    
   

SF de BX 1818.1112 62: 305-26 
(4) 

Flores de Abrego 
  Josefa      

Punishment given Guerra, her son, and spouse of 
Theresa Mireles, for concubinage 

N.p. n.d. 170: 417-18 
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16Probably San Fernando de Rosas—present-day Zaragosa, in the state of Coahuila. 

Fola,  
  Gertrudis 

Wife of Francisco Castañuela: pension approved MX 1825.1116 85: 970-73 
(1) 

— — SF 1825.1210 86: 625-27 
— — SF 1825.1213 86: 672-78 

(6) 
— — SF 1825.1224 87: 46-66 (7) 
Francisca  
  (slave) 

Sold to Juan Ygnacio Piéfermo by Domingo Rachal 
of Natchitoches 

[NAC?] 180?.08? 168: 92-93 

Fuentes,  
  Ana María 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1110 62: 220-58 
(9) 

Fuentes,  
  Marîa 

Francisco Amangual petitions to marry her BX 1807.0422 35: 986-87 

Galán,  
  Josefa 

Tax on goods J. Casiano left with her LB 1824.1213 78: 461-62 

Galán de 
Hernández,  
  María Josefa 

Welcomes Ana María García [deTrespalacios] to 
Texas  

LB 1822.1029 73: 292 

Gámez,  
  Gertrudis de  

Sumaria against settlers who aided her and Manuel 
Rendón's escape     

BX, E. 1815.0404 – 
1815.0419 

54: 916-50 

García,  
  Agustina 

Granted military pension with Francisco García BX 1831.0724 143: 123-44 
(6) 

— — GOL 1831.0812 143: 672-84 
García,  
  Gregoria 

Wife of Carlos Grulla of Bayou Pierre; arrives with 
Nabor González and José Malacallo requesting to 
be included in general pardon 

NAC 1810.1019 46: 943-47 
(2) 

García,  
  Juana 

Judgment against Tomás Travieso for murder of 
her husband, Juan de Escamilla  
   

GUA, E. [1777] 12: 87-95 

García,  
  María Catarina 

Daughter of María Josefa Gómez; decision in 
mother’s demand of her custody from Manuel 
García 

Rosas16 1835.0922 166: 790-92 
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— — Rosas 1835.0925 166: 800 
García,  
  María Josefa 

Remittance of sumaria against Severo Ruiz for 
assaulting her 

BX 1834.0615 162: 68-73  

García,  
  María Josefa 
  del Carmen 

Case against her and Felipe Vásquez 
 
 

LVC 1829.0801 124: 514-17 
(4) 

García,  
  María Trinidad 

Deceased.  Management of estate discussed by José 
Antonio de la Garza    

SF de BX 1816.0813 56: 900-02 

García,  
  María Trinidad 

Servant of AlejandroTreviño; investigation of his 
charges against her for theft 

SF de BX, E. 1829.0115 -
1829.1205 

119: 210-21 

García,  
  Petra  

Francisco Lojero informs [E.Seguín] of paying 
money to her 

MAT 1832.0326 148: 912-16 
(3) 

García Bientrigo y 
Ramón,  
  María 

Tomás Mungía granted permission to marry her 
 

SAL 1825.0409 80: 454-59 
(1) 

García de 
Trespalacios, 
  Ana María 

Roberto San Miguel and Juana María Treviño’s 
letter of introduction to her 

LAR 1822.1007 73: 82-83 

— Wife of Governor Félix Trespalacios; letters 
welcoming her to Texas from Gertrudis Barrera de 
García, ayuntamiento de La Bahía, Fray José 
Antonio Valdés, María Josefa Galán de Hernández 
and María Gertrudis Flores 

LB 1822.1027 73: 287 

— — LB 1822.1029 73: 289-93 
— — BX 1822.1105 73: 417-20 

(2) 
— — BX 1822.1105 73: 421 
Garza,  
  Ana María de la 

Testimonies of her, José de Lazo and others on 
conduct of Father Antonio Valdéz 

BX 1818.1028 62: 33-36 

— Requests payment of debt owed her by Nazario 
Amador and Roberto López 

LB 1827.1119 109: 382-84 

— Inquiry on case against her LB 1829.0120 119: 465-66 
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Garza, Elaria      
Estefana de la 

Wife of Pablo López; her release requested 
following charges pressed against him 

BX 1829.0208 119: 935-36 

Garza, 
  Isabel de la 

Sumaria against her and sentence MAT 1835.0502 164: 938-45 
(2) 

— — BX 1835.0601 165: 426-43 
(3) 

Garza, Juana 
  Francisca de la 
(Juan Francisco) 

Widow of Leonardo de la Garza; petitions for 
widow’s pension to support herself and daughter 

LB 1826.0228 89: 952-56 

— — BX 1826.0316 90: 519-29 
(5) 

— — MX 1826.0427 92: 144-47 
(2) 

— — BX 1826.0601 93: 519 
— — LB  1826.0623 94: 326-32 

(1) 
 — BX 1826.07? 95: 532-35 

(1) 
— — MX 1826.0812 96: 3-18 (2) 
— — LB 1826.0914 96: 890-91 
— — LB 1826.0930 97: 226 
— — LB 1827.0405 102: 113-14 
Garza,  
  María Antonia 
[de l]a    (Agarza) 

Pesonal letter from Manuel Antonio Melo on siege 
of Béxar by colonists 

BX 1835.1114 167: 402-03 

Garza,  
  María de Jesús de 
la 

Receives money owed to her husband from fielato [MNT] 1806.0701 34: 838 

Garza, María 
del Refugio de la 

Fight with María Polonia Carmona BX, E. 1814.0819 - 
1814.0825 

54: 140-50 

— Requests widow’s pension MNC 1826.0426 92: 139-40 
Garza,  
  María Dolores 

Debt owed by Francisco Castañeda BX 1827.0621 104: 561-67 
(3) 
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17 Nuestra Señora de la Purísima Concepción de Acuña. 

— — BX 1827.0626 104: 731-39 
(1) 

Garza,  
  María Josefa de 
la 

Miguel Músquiz’ case against her for cow BX, E. 1807.0616 36: 359 

— Donates ten head of cattle to the army SF de BX 1813.1217 53: 440-41 
— Sumaria against her returned BX 1818.0609 61: 172-73  
— Military pension BX 1818.1029 62: 37-40 (1) 
— Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-

American invasion 
SF de BX 1818.1110 62: 220-58 

(11) 
— — SF de BX 1818.1115 62: 359- 68 

(2) 
— Report of those who killed stock belonging to her 

and Rafael Casillas 
San 
Francisco de 
la Espada M. 

1820.0401 64: 96-8 

— — San 
Francisco de 
la Espada M. 

1820.0530 64: 417-18 

— Case against Matías Navarro for killing her cow SF de BX, E. 1825.0112 - 
1825.0117 

78: 973-78 

— Case against Marcelo Alcorta and Juan José 
Mónico Pérez for killing her stock 

SF de BX, E. 1826.0407 - 
1826.0408 

91: 369-78 

— Petitions for widow’s pension LB 1828.0118 111: 97-99 
— In Libro borrador BX, E 1828.0124 - 

1828.0904 
111: 159-95 

Garza,  
  María Leonor de 
la 

Sues José María Herrera for breach of contract Concepción 
M.17 

1809.1114 43: 351-52 

Garza,  
  Patricia de la 

In Cuaderno borrador of Gaspar Flores 
  

BX, E. 1834.0630 - 
1834.1008 

162: 184-256 
 

— Widow of Martín de León; report of her property  GUA 1834.1003 163: 229-30 
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— To testify on deceased husband’s finiancial matters GUA 1834.1111 163: 288-93 
(2) 

— — BX 1834.1119 163: 331-32 
— Refuses to report to administrator of Revenue 

Department at Béxar; José María Carvajal, to serve 
as her attorney; plans to appoint a new attorney 

GV 1835.0723 166: 33-34 

Garza, 
  Rafaela de la 

Widow of José Curbelo and spouse of Francisco 
Flores de Abrego; sues her son, José Antonio 
Curbelo, for property as heir of José Curbelo 

BX, E. 1770.0403 - 
1770.0406 

10: 716-19 

Garza, 
   Tomasa de la 

Requests town lot in San Fernando BX, E. 1745.0116 - 
1745.0120 

8: 885-87 

Gemlich, 
  Helena 

Protests ayuntamiento’s order of eviction NAC 1831.0104 137: 639-41 

Giggi, 
  Lucinda 

José Casiano’s inventory of goods sold to her and 
permit for their transportation 

BX 1834.1206 163: 436 

Gil, 
  Juana 

Debtor; arrest warrant for her, José María Bustillos 
and Juan José Rodríguez 

SF [de BX] 1821.0903 68: 303-04 

Gómez,  
  María Josefa 

Land titles granted to her, Miguel Sacio and 
Enrique Estocoman 

NAC 1828.1028 117: 542-50 
(6) 

— — NAC 1829.0119 119: 437-57 
(10) 

— Land taxes to be paid by her, José María Mora and 
others 

BX 1830.0429 130: 98-104 
(1) 

— — NAC  1830.0525 130: 686-718 
(2) 

— — NAC 1830.0622 131: 892-909 
(6) 

— — NAC 1830.0831 133: 947-57 
(4) 

— — BX  1830.0915 134: 457-61 
(1) 

Gómez, 
  María Josefa 

Her case demanding custody of daughter, María 
Catarina, García from Manuel García 

Rosas 1835.0922 166: 790-92 
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— — Rosas 1835.0925 166: 800 
González, 
  Ignacia 

Trinidad Coy requests permission to marry her BX 1829.1105 126: 539-40 

González, 
  María Catarina 

Purchases mulatto slave from Angel Navarro BX 1807.0112 35: 514-15 

González, 
  María de Jesús 

Summonded by José Lázaro Benavides LAR 1827.0611 104: 245-46 

González, María     
   Guadalupe 

Widow’s pension LVC 1828.0517 113: 743-45 
(2) 

— — LVC 1828.0517 113: 748-53 
(2) 

— — SF  1828.0621 114: 534-66 
(3) 

— — V. de AUS 1828.0726 115: 402-19 
(14) 

Goy Gortua,  
  María Antonia 

Dolores González writes her of inability to return 
home 

NAT 1814.0714 54: 25 

Granados,  
   Josefa 

Division of inherited property and rights of way for 
roads and acequias signed by her, Pedro Granados 
and others 

[BX?] n.d. 168: 328-29 

Granados, 
  María Antonia 

Her suit against María Celedonia Pérez de 
Granados disputing inheritance 

BX, E. 1792.0331 - 
1795.0226 

22: 265-78 

Granados,  
  Teresa 

Of Natchitoches; power of attorney to José Antonio 
de la Garza to sell property in Béxar to R[amón] 
Músquiz 

SF de BX, E. 1828.1125 - 
1828.1126 

118: 59-60 

Grapt,  
  María  Juana 
(Grape, Grapo)
  

Requests that sons be permitted to take mail to 
Natchitoches 

BX  1817.0812 59: 202-03 

— Receives money from Manuel de los Santos Coy SF de BX 182[1].1128 69: 246-47 
— Demands return of silver platter loaned to Orozco  

Company of Pilón 
[BX] 1822.0819 72: 550-51 
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— Requests that Andrés Chendo obey orders to return 
clothing stolen by Salmerón 

[BX] n.d. 168: 264-65 

Grillet,  
  Margarita 

Refused permit to export cattle to Lousiana BX 1805.0911  33: 586-87 

— — CHI, BX, E. 
 

1805.1008 - 
1805.1025 

33: 735 

Guadalupe  
  (wet nurse) 

Juan de Castañeda sends her to A. Martínez [BX] n.d. 65: 530-31 
(2) 

Guadalupe, 
Manuela   
   Juana 

Declared legitimate natural daughter of and with 
right to inherit property of José Maríano Magán 

LVC 1828.0510 113: 563-29 
(4) 

— — SF 1828.0621 114: 534-66 
(6) 

— — NAC 1828.0707 115: 25-37 
(6) 

Guajardo, 
   Isabel 

Wife of Manuel Arizmendi; receives money MAT 1834.0804 162: 859-62 
(2) 

Guajardo, 
  María 
Concepción 

Marriage to Tomás de Oquillas MNC 1825.0510 81: 144 

— — SRO 1825.0522 81: 402-07 
(5) 

— — MX 1825.0618 81: 880-81 
— — RG 1825.0711 82: 619-21 

(2) 
— — RG 1825.0712 82: 629 
— — SRO 1825.0729 82: 964 
Guerra, 
  Cacilda 

Wife of Vicente Zorro; Refugio del la Garza reports 
investigation of her 

BX 1832.0413 149: 391-92 

     
Guerra, 
  Juana 

Death GOL 1834.0622 162: 124-25 

Guerra, Pays custom duties SAL  1824.0531 77: 183-84 
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  María 
Guerrero, 
  María Gertrudis 

Difficulties in collecting money from José María de 
los Santos’ wife for payment of articles stolen from 
Guerrero 

LB 1824.0104 76: 47-57 (4) 

— — LB 1824.0208 76: 347-48 
— In Records of petitions and decrees conceerning 

land grants 
[BX], E. 1828.0313  

1828.0827 
112: 289-300 

— Dispute with Nicolás Galán over property LB 1828.0720 115: 262-65 
(2) 

— Investigation of her complaint over forfeited land GOL 1829.0327 121: 102-16 
(3) 

Guerrero, 
  María Luisa 

Proceedings on her petition for signatures of heirs 
on her deed of ownership 

SF de BX [1810.1231] 47: 699-700 

Gutiérrez, 
  María Basilia 

Testimony against Antonio Barrera by her and 
husband, Luis González, for theft 

BX, E. 1833.0513 156: 382-84 

Hernández, 
  Antonia Luzgarda 

Her suit against Miguel Nuñez Murillo demanding 
return of her son 

BX, E. 1735.0809 8: 369-70 

Hernández,  
  Clemencia 

Protests killing of her stock by citizens and a 
soldier of Béxar 

BX 1823.0303 74: 297-99 

— She and her children petition for stock roundup to 
determine share as I. Pérez’ heirs 

BX  1823.1227 75.939-40 

Hernández, 
  Josefa 

María Carbajal’s suit against her for possession of 
land 

SF, E. 1770.0323 - 
1772.0222 

10: 700-15 

— Baltasar Flores’ testimony in investigation of 
limpieza de sangre of José Clemente de Arocha, 
grandson of Joaquín Urrutia and her 

[SF de BX]  n.d. 170: 419-21 

Hernández,  
  Juana 

Petitions for release of husband from duties at 
caballada to take care of his family 

[BX] 1820.1106 65: 698 

Hernández,  
  María Josefa 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX [1818.1109] 62: 193-212 
(8) 

— She and María Sabia demand that A. Martínez pay 
for animal he killed 

SF de BX 1822.0830 72: 697-98 

Hernández,  Eusebio Farías petitions to marry her BX 1831.0409 139: 1016 
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18 Second Flying Company of soldiers from Alamo de Parras, from which the Alamo took its name. The company was 
brought as reinforcements to San Antonio from San Carlos de Parras, Coahuila, in 1813, and stationed at the secularized 
San Antonio Valero mission, then converted into a presidio which came to be known as “the Alamo.” 

  María Luisa  
Hernández, 
  María Manuela 

Manuel María de Torres reports her arrival and that 
she is receiving good care and temporary pension 

SLP 1815.1212 56: 65 

Hernández,  
  Rosalia 

Mother of José Leal N.p. 1803.0714 168: 872 

Herrera, 
  María Dolores 

Luis Esparza’s note that she and Manuel Izaguirre 
are parents of José Trinidad Izaguirre, abducted by 
Indians, and Osallo Izaguirre, lost in the country 

N.p. n.d. 168: 700 

Herrera, 
  María Guadalupe 
de 

Permission for her marriage to Antonio Gil Ibarvo CHI 1796.0125 26: 342-43 

Herrera, 
  María Josefa de 

Petitions Governor José A. Martínez for widow’s 
pension; husband was Nicolás Días of Flying 
Company of Alamo18 in Texas, and she was 
informed of his death by María Concepción Flores 

MNC n.d. 168: 278-79 

Hidalgo,   
  María Pilar  

Ventura Lozoya petitions on her behalf for return of 
property confiscated in 1813    

SF de BX 1822.1014 73: 178-79 

Higuera,  
  María Loreta  

Petitions for widows’ pension 
 

LB 1817.0530 58: 697-706 
(4) 

Hinojosa,  
[Hinojosa] 
  María  

Debt between her and  Clemente Delgado 
 

BX 1806.0620 34: 714 

Hinojosa,  
María de Jesús 
(slave) 

Sold by Luisa Gertrudis de la Rúa to Victor Blanco 
 

BX 1820.0520 64: 363-65 

Hinojosa,  
  María Uvalda
  

José Ignacio Travieso’s case against her and 
Manuel Quintero for payment of rent 

SF de BX, E. [1821.0111-
1821.0213] 

66: 267-69 
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Hoyos,  
 Juana de  
 

She and  Andrés Hernández certify ownership of 
stock of their son, Miguel Hernández 

SF 1765.0128  10: 357-58 

Huizar,  
  Gertrudis  

She, Albina Patiño and others petition for  widow's 
pension 
       

SF  1827.0802 105: 975-95 
(10) 

Huizar  
  María (Huísar), 
(mulatto slave) 

Josefa Leal sells her to Manuel Pérez 
 

SF 1807.0508 36: 42-44 

— Clemente Delgado sells her to Manuel Pérez SF 1808.1215  39: 668-70 
— Granted freedom by Teresa Curbelo and Manuel 

Pérez 
SF 1808.1215 39: 671-73 

— — 
 

SF, E. 1809.0524 - 
1809.0626 

41: 474-76 
(1) 

Ibarvo,  
  María Antonia 

She and Ponciano Ibarvo petition for rent due on 
buildings occupied by troops 

NAC 1812.0114 50: 51 

— — NAC 1812.0123 50: 109-10 
Ibarvo,  
  María de la 
Trinidad 

Punishment 
 

NAC 1803.0903 31: 568 

— Release NAC 1803.1126 31: 820 
Ibarvo,  
  María Telesfora 

Land Petition 
 

NAC 1827.1113 109: 275-79 

Igarte,  
  Juana de 

Of Monterrey; Manuel Iturri Castillo requests 
payment of debt 

BX 1824.1030 78: 186-87 

Inés 
  

José Antonio Huízar to appear before Gabriel de 
Arco with her, Josefa Martos and Cecilia 

[BX] 1815.0317 54: 867 

Iturri,  
  Josefa de 

María Josefa Agustina Becerra writes her asking to 
be included in banquet to welcome first lady of 
Texas [Ana María García de Trespalacios] 

[BX]  [1822.0825] 72: 644 

Jiménez,  
  Ana Luisa 

Demands child support from José Antonio 
González Hidalgo 
 

BX 1810.0628 45: 861-64 
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— — Revilla 1810.0711 45: 999 
Jiménez,  
  Juana  

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion  
 

SF de BX 1818.1113 62: 335-40 
(2) 

Jiménez,  
  Luisa  

Deed for land she bought from Martín Beniíez and 
José Valdés 

SF, E. 1809.0524 - 
1809.0626 

41: 474-76 
(2) 

Jiménez,  
  María 

Marital problems with Bernardo Castillo and her 
request for divorce 

BX 1829.0219 120: 208 

— — [BX] [1829?] 169: 689 
Jiménez,  
  María Ignacia 

Wife of Andrés Arroyo; to be sent away for her 
scandalous conduct 

BX 1819.0315 62: 791-92 

— — BX 1819.0316 62: 793 
Jiménez,  
  María Gertrudis 

Widow of Juan Bautista de Elguézabal; petitions 
for military pension 

BX  1805.1223 34: 28 

— — SF 1806.0211 34: 283-84 
— — BX 1806.0709 34: 857-58 
— — BX 1806: 1205 35: 252-59 

(3) 
— Debt to Company of Béxar SF de BX 1809.1031 43: 291 
— — MNC 1809.1122 43: 410-11 
Jiménez,  
  María Josefa 

Antonio Pérez petitions to marry her 
 

BX 1828.0208 111: 565-66 

Jiménez,  
  María Micaela 

Jesús de la Garza petitions to marry her 
 

SRO 1835.0927 166: 825-40 

— — SRO 1835.1002 167: 85-86 
Jiménez,  
  Paula 

Sentence against her remitted 
 

MNC 1833.0717 157: 464-66 
(1) 

Jiménez,  
  Teresa 

Sister of Juan Jiménez; he petitions for her release 
 

BX 1819.1125 63: 5151-17 

Josefita 
 

Personal letter from Cayetano relating unhappy 
state of exile in New Orleans and describing 
suffering during trip from Veracruz to New Orleans
      

NO 1834.0109 160: 39-42 
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Juárez,  
  Benita  

To be questioned on her capture by Comanches 
 

[BX] [1834] 163: 688-89 

Kimble,  
  Helena 

Land titles  
 

NAC 1827.0724 105: 674-87 
(10) 

— — NAC 1827.1001 107: 774-85 
(5) 

— — NAC 1829.0512 122: 384-95 
(4) 

— — NAC 1829.0512 122: 397-98  
— Taxes for land on Angelina River NAC 1828.0902 116: 383-88 

(3) 
Lareguandiera 
(Lakenandiére),  
  María Luisa de 

Transfer to Béxar BX 1821.0110 66: 257-60 
(1) 

— — LB 1821.0123 66: 479 
Larranaga,  
  María Teodora 

Military pension 
 

LVC 1832.0623 151: 1-2 

Layit,  
  María (slave) 

Conclusion of proceedings against her 
 

NAC 1812.0203 50: 229-38 
(6) 

Leal,  
  Encarnación 

Francisco Gómez granted permission to marry her 
 

BX 1834.1001 163: 73 

Leal, 
  Josefa 

Sells to her son, Manuel Pérez, mulatto slave María 
Huísar 

SF 1807.0508 36: 42-44 

— Husband, Francisco Pérez, claims her property GOL 1834.0714 162: 493-94 
— — GOL 1834.0715 162: 514-18 

(1) 
Leal,  
  Juana   
(see also Leal y 
Arocha, Juana) 

Pension denied 
 

MX 1825.1215 86: 720-21 

Leal,  
  María Ignacia 

Debt owed to José Darío Zambrano BX 1816.0516 56: 609-14 
(1) 
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19 Málaga Spain. 
20 San Francisco de la Espada Mission. 

—   Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion   

SF de BX 1818.1130 62: 433-37 
(3) 

— Grants permission for son, Juan Antonio Urrutia, to 
marry Antonia Sandoval 

BX 1829.0730 124: 472 

Leal,  
  María Jesúsa 

Makes charges against Indian girl Angelita 
 

San Juan  
Capistrano  
M. 

1817.0507 58: 543-44 

Leal y Arocha,    
   Juana 

Marriage to Vicente Tarín 
 

CHI 1810.1127 47: 363-64 
(1) 

— — BX 1810.1226 47: 651-55 
(4) 

López,  
  Josefa 

Search for her servant 
 

RG 1827.0123 100: 203 

López,  
  Máxima 

Receives  money owed to deceased husband SF de BX 1812..0512 51: 254 

Lorenzo y Cedrón,   
  Manuela 

No record of royal permit for marriage to A. 
Martínez 

Málaga19 1818.0912 61: 785 

Losoya,  
María de la 
Concepción  

Sues José María Martínez for rape 
 

SA de VAL, 
E. 

1800.0614 - 
1800.0627 

29: 523-32 

Loza,  
  Anita 

Description of José Elepto Valmontes, son of her 
and Xavier Velmontes 

N.p. n.d. 171: 165 

Loza,  
  Rosalia 

Arrives with soldier García   
     

M. Espada20 1810.0811 46: 349-50 

Luisa Carlota    
  (Princess) 

Marriage to Infante Francisco de Paula 
 

MNT 1820.0401 64: 86-90 (1) 

— — BX, E. 1820.0415 - 
1820.0425 

64: 209-10 
(2) 

— — BX 1820.0427 64: 266  
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— — BX 1820.0428 64: 268-69 
(2) 

— — LB 1820.0430 64: 274-87 
(3) 

— — Madrid 1820.0619 64: 564 
Luisita,  
(señora or doña) 

See Urtega, María Luisa de — -— -— 

Luna,  
  Guadalupe de 

Case in her favor remitted; husband killed by 
Americans      

LB 1818.0626 61: 232-39 
(4) 

Luna,  
  María Guadalupe 
de 

Petitions for widow's pension 
 

LB 1817.0825 59: 343-44 

Luna, 
  María Luisa de 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1110 62: 220-58 
(15) 

MacMullen, 
  Esther 

Her list of goods transported to Goliad via Juan 
MacMullen’s colony 

BX 1831.0803 143: 489 

Maldonado,     
  Gertrudis 

Escort 
 

LB 1808.1224 39: 771-73 
(3) 

— Accidentally shot by Juan Pablo Flores SRO 1829.0508 122: 191-200 
(4) 

— —     BX 1829.0515 122: 478-87 
(5) 

Maldonado, 
  María Antonia 

She and Bernardo del Toro consent to marriage of 
daughter, María Rafael del Toro, to Dionisio García 
de Rivera; includes daughter’s baptismal record and 
investigation of origin and religious beliefs 

MNC 1824.0122 76: 234-35 
(1) 

— — MNC, E. 1824.0320 - 
1824.0324 

76: 666-675 
(3) 

— — MNC, E. 1824,0320 - 
1824.0324 

76: 666-75 
(4) 
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21 Royal Palace of El Pardo, near Madrid. 
22 Town in present Pánama on the Atlantic coast. 

María Amalia,    
  (infanta) 

Royal orders celebrating her birth El Pardo,21  
Nombre de 
Dios,22 SA de 
BX, LB, E. 

1779.0124 - 
1779.1006 

12: 788-90 

— — Nombre de 
Dios 

1779.0614 13: 69 

— — BX 1779.0829 13: 384-85 
— — BX 1779.0908 13: 413-14 
María Inés 
 

Sumaria against Honorato de Luna for quarreling 
with her     

BX, E. 1814.0417 - 
1814.0421 

53: 746-52 

María Isabel    
   Francisca,  
  (Queen of Spain) 

Marriage to Fernando VII 
   
 

[BX] 
 

[1817.0802] 59: 108-109 

— — MNT 1817.0819 59: 267-68 
— Death SLP 1819.0413 62: 856 
María Josefa 
Amalia 

Marriage to Fernando VII; includes general pardon SLP 1820.0110 63: 715 

— — Mier 1820.0207 63: 847-51 
(1) 

— — BX 1820.0218 63: 917-20 
— — MNT 1820.0419 64: 226-27 
— — SLP 1820.0522 64: 370 
— — LB 1820.0616 64: 616-30 

(2) 
María Juana 
 

Bill of sale between her and José de la Vega for her 
son, Dortolant’s slave 
 

SF 1808.0209 37: 645-46 

María Luisa     
  (infanta)  

She and Infante Francisco de Paula declared heirs 
to the Crown      

BX 1821.0215 66: 637-73 
(7) 
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— — BX 1821.0216 66: 676-95 
(12) 

María Veronica 
 

Blas María Zamora requests permission to marry 
her       
   

SFde BX 1829.0612 123: 450 

Maristini,  
  María Ana 

Samuel Williams claims her illegitimate daughter SF de AUS 1827.0418 102: 481-83 

Marrujo, 
  María Francica 

Widow of José Miguel Alvarado; petitions for 
military pension 

MNT 1816.0706 56: 764-65 

— Petitions for return of lost property during Anglo-
American invasion     

SA de VAL 1818.1109 62: 135-37 

Martínez, 
  (señora)  

Personal letter from Andrés Real acknowledging 
her letter sent with Corporal Sáenz 
 

NAT 1821.1229 69: 686-87 

— María Josefa Agustina Becerra de Seguín relates 
her greetings to E. Seguín    

BX [1824?] 168: 255-57 

Martínez,  
  Albina 

Wife of José Luis Gallardo; judicial proceedings on 
her complaint against Petra Navarrete for false 
accusations 

BX, E. 1826.0608 - 
1826.0609 

93: 805-08 

Martínez,  
  Ana María 

Petitions for return of property of brother, Antonio 
Martínez, who died without heirs 

BX 1823.0513 74: 795  

Martínez,     
  Clemencia 

Of Béxar; her mule and two horses returned 
 

LAR 1825.0308 79: 778 

Martínez,  
  Juana 

Trip to Béxar TRN 1810.0601 45: 514-19 
(2) 

— Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion    
              

SF de BX 1818.1109 62: 138-92 
(14) 

Martínez,  
  Luzgarda 

To be paid on Miguel Zaragoza's behalf 
 

NAC 1830.0831 133:960 

Martínez,  
  María 

Case against Francisco Travieso for raping her 
 

BX, E. 1794.0816 - 
1794-0905 

24: 901-07 
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Martínez,  
  María Antonia 

In Record of petitions and decrees concerning land 
grants 

[BX], E. 1828.0313 - 
1828.0827 

112: 289-300 

Martínez,  
  María de Jesús 

Division of A. Martínez’ property between 
daughters, María de Jesús and María Rafaela 

BX 1830.1106 136: 70-75 
(3) 

Martínez, 
  María Rafaela 

In Record of petitions and decrees concerning and 
grants 

[BX], E. 1828.0313-
1828.0827 

112: 289-300 

— Division of A. Martínez’ property between his 
daughters, María de Jesús and María Rafaela 

BX 1830.1106 136: 70-75 
(3) 

Martos,  
  Josefa 

José Antonio Huízar to appear before Gabriel de 
Arcos with her, Cecilia and Inés 

[BX] 1815.0317 54: 867 

Melo,  
  Genoveva 

Marriage to Irineo Castillón MNT 1820.1108 65: 717-18 

Menchaca,  
  Josefa 

Proceedings on property claimed by José Casino 
following her death 

SF de BX, E. 1828.0124- 
1828.0827 

111: 196-237 

Menchaca,  
  María 

Consents to daughter's marriage to Eusebio 
Almaguer 

[BX] 1830.0218 128: 559 

Merced,  
  María de la 

José Trejo to present documents on her will 
 

LB 1827.0816 106: 404-08 
(1) 

Miedray y 
Pacheca, 
    Ana 

Of New Mexico; petitions for information about 
husband, José María García, soldier at La Bahia
     

Santa Fe 1807.0606 36: 222-23 

— — BX 1807.0930 36: 976 
— — SC 1807.1202 37: 273 
— — BX 1808.0309 37: 846 
Mier,  
  Adriana (de) 

Mother of D. de Ugartechea;  military pension and 
payments from his salary. 

MNT 1825.0527 81: 476-77 

— — MNC 1825.0601 81: 568-69 
— — MNC 1825.0601 81: 570-71 
— — MNC 1825.0602 81: 586 
— — MNT 1825.0610 81: 775-76 
— — RG 1825.0627 82: 132  
— Death MNC 1826.0821 96: 248-58 

(1) 
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23 San Juan Bautista del Río Grande: a complex of a presideio, three missions and a civilian settlement located near present 
Guerrero Coahuila. 

Mireles,  
  Teresa (Theresa) 

Her spouse, Guerra, punished for concubinage
       

N.p. n.d. 170: 417-18 

Moncaro, 
  María Brigída 

Proceedings agains Andrés Valentín for debt owed 
to her 

NAC, E. 1826.0530 -
1827.0522 

93: 384-89 

Montemayor,  
  Isidra 

Wife of José María Martínez; their case against 
Anastacia Zambrano for guardianship of child; 
includes Zambrano’s appeal 

SF de BX 1827.0813 106: 297-98 

— — SF de BX 1827.0816 106: 415-18 
Montemayor,    
  Manuela 

Pension 
 

MNC 1826.0412 91: 496-516 
(10) 

— — MNC 1826.0412 91: 520 
— Horse delivered RG 1826.0418 91: 870 
Montes,  
  María Ignacia 

Petitions for salary of deceased husband, José Eca y 
Músquiz 

BX 1808.0531 38: 186 

Montoya,  
  Isabel 

Pasq[ual] Rodríguez petitions for permission to 
marry her      

BX 1828.0112 110: 904-05 

Moore,  
  Sara 

Deceased wife of Frédéric Zerbán; he petitions to 
bring her slaves left at Natchitoches   

NO, E. 1802.0210 30: 569-70 

Mora,  
  Mauricia 

Paid rent by Guillermo Barr for using her house for 
English prisoners 

NAC 1803.1002 31: 678 

—  — NAC 1803.1126 31: 812 
— Jacinto Mora claims cow belonging to her, his 

daughter  
NAC 1804.0603 32: 376 

—  Review of case against her by Antonia de los Rîos. NAC 1807.0201 35: 606-08 
Morales,  
  Antonia 

Widow of Manuel Rodríguez; sells slave, María de 
la Candelaria Fierro, to Julián de Arocha 
   

San Juan 
Bautista del 
RG,23 BX, E.  

1792.0124 -
1793.0201 

22: 31-36 

Morín,  
  María 
Concepción 

Her case against Vicente Micheli for breach of  
contract 
 

V. de 
Salcedo, E. 

1810.0403 -
1810.0406 

44: 629-31 
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Morín, 
María Encarnación 

Her and José Leandro Hernández’ depositions on 
abduction by Comanches 

RG 1826.0419 91: 908-09  

— — RG 1826.0429 92:198-204 
(3) 

— — SC 1826.0524 93: 211-18 
(3) 

Morón, 
  María Susana 

Petetions to settle at Salcedo: decision NAC  1808.0126 37: 529--30 

— — BX 1808.0215 37: 705 
Músquiz,  
  Juana María 

Petitions for military pension 
 

BX 1828.1024 117: 473-74 

Narro,  
  Josefa 

Paid rent for her house used as military warehouse 
       

SAL 1825.0115 79:09 

Navarrete,  
  Petra 

Judicial proceedings on Albina Martínez’ 
complaint against her for false accusations 

BX, E. 1826.0608 -
1826.0609 

93: 805-08 

—  Arrest warrant for her daughter [BX] 1826.0617 94: 111-14 
Navarro,  
  María Antonia 

Of Béxar; [Ahumada] petitions to marry her 
 

BX 1826.0820 96: 212-13 

Navarro, 
  María Josefa 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

BX 1818.1020 61: 1021-23 

Nieves,  
  María 

Wife of Juan Manuel Uriegas; José Zúñiga accused 
of running away with her 

BX 1834.0429 161: 279-81 

Ocona,  
  Juana Antonia 

Francisco López requests divorce because of her 
infidelity 

NAC 1812.0723 51: 962-64 

Oconitrillo 
(Ocontrillo),  
  Juana 

Proceedings of her case discussed 
 

SRO 1792.0602 22: 430-31 

— — SRO 1792.0714 22: 538 
— Tomás de Arocha’s suit against her for land SF de AUS, 

E. 
1809.1011- 
1810.1112 

43: 148-62 

Olivares,  
  María Petra de 

Debt owed by Manuel de la Garza SA de 
VAL 

1808.1025 38: 895 
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— — SF 1809.1230 43: 637-38 
Origuela,  
  Gertrudis 

Physical description of Juan Ruiz Crespo of 
Tlaltipetenpen (Puebla), her husband 

N.p. [1808] 168:199-200 

Ortiz,  
  Dolores 

Pesonal letter from Domingo Bustillos on his health 
and expressing desire to see her and children again  

BX 1823.0820 75:452-54 

Ortiz,  
  Luisa  

Declares that sum borrowed from Maestro 
Sombredero to help her daughter, Teodora 
Rodríguez, is owed by latter 

[BX?] n.d. 168: 0859 

Ortiz,  
  María,  

Record of members of families of her, Gregorio 
Herrera and others, totaling 215 persons 

N.p.  [1822] 73:897 

— — CHI 1809.0727 42: 386 
Padilla,  
  María 

Wife of Antonio Gil Ibarvo; death and settlement of 
estate 

NAC, SA de 
BX, E. 

1794.1124 - 
1794.1226 

25: 37-38 

— — CHI 1799.1121 29: 197 
— — CHI 1799.1121 29: 198-99 
Panda,  
  Rafaela 

She, Alvino Castellón and Miguel Pando to be 
witnesses against Rafael Gárate 

BX 1815.0421 55: 20-22 

Patiño,  
  Albina  

She, María del Carmen Flores, Paula Ramón and 
Gertrudis Huízar petition for widow's pensiones 

RG 1826.0404 91: 195-206 
(8) 

— — SC 1826.0423 92: 18-25 (3) 
— — SF 1827.0802 105: 975-95 

(10) 
Paypán,  
  Rosalia  

Petitions for land at Concordia Concordia, 
E. 

1801.1203 30: 440 

Peña,  
  María 

Her son, Antonio Valverde, to be sent to Béxar for 
her property; requests that daughter be sent back 
with messenger 

GUE 1835.0215 164: 142-44 

Peña, María     
  Gertrudis de la 

Granted freedom by Angel Navarro BX, E. 1785.0125- 
1785.0504 

16: 385-99 

Pereda,  
  María del Pilar 

Petitions for property of sister who died without 
heirs 

BX 1834.1112 163: 311-12 

Pérez,  
  Concepción 

Taxes paid for dances and grocery stores by her, 
José Bernardo Flores and others 

BX, E. 1824.0201- 
1824.0229 

76: 318-25 
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Pérez, 
  Francisca 

Widow; personal property LB, BX, E. 1799.0426 - 
1799.0428 

28: 825-26 

— — NAC 1799.0703 28: 925 
Pérez,  
  Juana Francisca 

Case against her by Pedro José Tejada for adultery SF, E. 1782.0104 - 
1782.0406 

14: 901-15 

Pérez, María    
  Alejandra (Pérez   
  [de Arocha]) 

Permission by mother, María Teresa Curbelo, to 
marry Santiago Hernández 

BX 1829.1203 126:1013 

— — [BX] [1829.1206] 127: 62 
Pérez, María     
  Concepcion 

Fernando Rodríguez granted permission to marry 
her 

MNT 1817.0918 59: 551-52 

Pérez,  
 María 
Encarnación 

José Antonio Hernández granted permission to 
marry her 

BX 1830.0313 129: 70 

— — BX 1830.0324 129: 244-45 
(1) 

— — BX 1830.0324 129: 244-45 
(2) 

Pérez,  
  María Felipa 

Sumaria against her, Aparicio Cantú and others BX 1815.0607 55: 178-86 
(5) 

Pérez, María      
Gertrudis 

Marriage to Antonio Cordero BX 1814.0312 53: 562-63 

— Military escort to Río Grande, Coahuila BX 1815.0831 55: 611-12 
— — MNC 1815.1214 56: 71 
— — BX 1816.0103 56: 174 
— Departs for Béxar MNT 1818.1209 62: 472-74 

(2) 
— Daughter of I. Pérez; he requests permission to 

travel to [Coahuila] to aid her 
BX 1823.0213 74: 208-209 

     
— Wife of José Casiano; his contributions to 

municipal and school funds in her memory 
BX 1832.1001 153: 457-58 

— — BX 1832.1113 153: 923-24 
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24 Nava—town in Mexico, northeastern state of Coahuila. 

— — BX 1832.1115 153: 963-64 
— — BX 1832.1119 54: 15-17 
— Land petition filed by her, Vicente Cepeda and 

others 
BX, E. 1834.0118 160: 177-78 

Pérez,  
  María Guadalupe 

Gervacio Benavides petitions to marry her Nava24 1827.0428 102: 875-81 
(1)  

Pérez,  
  María Ignacia 

Wife of Pedro Rodríguez, detached at Béxar; leaves 
him and arrives at Santa Rosa 

SRO 1816.0131 56: 246-47 

Pérez,  
  María Jesusa 

Approves marriage of María Encarnación Pérez and 
José Antonio Hernández 

BX 1830:0324 129: 244-45 
(1) 

Pérez, 
  María Josefa 

Gives daughter, María de la Trinidad Falcón y 
Pérez, authority to collect money from José 
Antonio Salinas for horse 

NAC 1827.1108 109: 112-113 

Pérez,  
  María Macedonia 

Sells slave, María Arciniega Zenovia, to José 
Miguel de Arciniega 

BX 1820.0715 64: 790-91 

Pérez, María     
  Regina  

Land petition SF de BX 1830.0414 129: 820-22 

Pérez,  
  María Rosa 

Croix disapproves of Pedro de Fuentes’ exercise of 
civil authority in her case 

SA de BX, E. 1778.0106 - 
1778.0113 

12: 134-135 

Pérez,  
  María Vicenta     
  (Vicente) 

Land petitions by her, Ramón Escobedo and 
Francisco Sosa 

BX 1826.0803 95: 689-93 
(3) 

— — SAL 1826.0825 96: 339-45 
(4) 

— — BX 1826.0912 96: 855-59 
(1) 

— — BX 1826.0930 97: 214-19 
(2) 

Pérez, 
  Rosalía 

Pension LAR 1814.0429 53: 799-800 
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25 Probably Sabinas Hidaldo, located in the state of Nuevo León. 
26Present day Villaldama, located in the state of Nuevo León. 

Pérez, Tomasa Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1109 62; 138-92 
(20) 

Pérez de Granados,   
  María Celedonia 

Suit against her by María Antonia Granados 
disputing inheritance 

BX, E 1792.0331 - 
1795.0226 

22: 265-78 

Pineda, María     
  Dorotea 

Her and José David Pineda’s land petitions and 
property 

NAC 1827.0917 107: 276-80 
(2) 

— — LVC 1828.1021 117: 375-80 
— — NAC 1831.0127 138: 253-54 
— — BX 1831.0130 138: 361-68 

(3) 
— — NAC 1831.0201 138: 484-86 
Prada 
 

Widow to receive help from Antonio García de 
Tejada 

MNC 1817.0630 58: 871-72 

Pridomo, 
  María Magdalena 

Allegiance to Spanish government BP 1809.0801 42: 436-38 
(2) 

Prieto, 
  Guadalupe  

Personal letter from José Ramón Díaz de 
Bustamante stating inability to visit and wishing 
her good trip to destination 

Camargo 1812.1005 52: 696-97 

[Prieto y la 
Ronde], 
  María Guadalupe 

Wife of M. [de] Salcedo; José Ramón Díaz de 
Bustamante’s letter to him which includes greetings 
to her and daughter 

N.p. [1812?]  168: 237-38 

Ramben, 
  María 

Allegiance to Spanish Government BP 1809: 0727 42: 387-90 
(1) 

Ramírez, 
María del Carmen 
(slave) (Carmel) 

Mulatto; contracts of sale for her and José María 
Refugio Guajardo to Angel Navarro; previously 
owned by Vicente Lozano, Miguel Músquiz and 
Vicente Travieso 

Sabinas25 1788.0411 19: 6-7 

— —  Boca de 
Leones26 

1799.0813 29: 9 
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27 San José y San Miguel de Aguayo mission. 

— — Boca de 
Leones, E. 

1799.1023 29:131-33 

— — Voca de 
Leones, V. 
de SF, 
Presidio de 
SA de BX, E. 

1799.1116- 
1806.0915 

29: 187-91 

— — SF 1806.0510 34.643-45 
— Sold by Miguel Músquiz to Pedro Jeremías 

Longueville 
SF 1808.0122 37: 509-11 

Ramírez, María 
 del Refugio  

Court costs of case against María Josefa Travieso 
 

LVC 
 

1829.0418 121: 666-67 

Ramón, María    
    Encarnación 

Petitions for husband's military pension 
 

CHI 1810.0320 44: 539-40 
(1) 

Ramón,  
  Paula 

She, Albina Patiño and others petition for widows’ 
pension 

SF  1827.0802 105: 975-95 
(10) 

Ramón de Flores,    
  María 
Concepcion 

Marcos Sanchez fails to pay debt to her MNC 1830.0922 134: 579-83 

Ramos,  
  María   

Sumaria against her and Ignacio Canales for theft 
 

RG 1828.0914 116: 715-23 
(1) 

Ramos,  
  Roslia 

Damián Córdova disappears leaving unpaid debt to 
her 

San José 
M.27 

1823.0321 74: 425-27 

Rendón, 
  Guadalupe  

Wife of Preciliano Fuentes; María Apolonia 
Montes requests their expulsion from 
Nacogdoches; escape 

SF de BX 1830.0217 128: 530-32 

— — BX 1830.0217 128: 547-48 
— — NAC 1830.0229 128: 805-06 
— — BX 1830.0405 129: 581-83 

(2) 
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  SF de BX, E. 1830.0405 -
1830.0407 

129: 586-605 

— — BX 1830.0415 129: 856-60 
(2) 

— — NAC 1830.0525 130: 686-718 
(16) 

Reyes,  
  Juana   

[M.  de Salcedo] orders Guadiana to admit her SF de BX 1809.1104 43: 312-14 
(1) 

Reyes y García,       
María Trinidad de 
los 

Francisco Amangual's petition to marry her 
approved 

SF de BX 1810.0816 46: 414 

— — CHI 1810.0918 46: 672-74 
(2) 

— — BX 1810.1006 46: 861-65 
(1) 

Richard,  
  Sara (Richards) 

Petitions to collect Mordecai Ricard's salary at 
Pensacola      

CHI 1808.0628 38: 316-17 
(1) 

— — BX 1808.0717 38: 404 
Río,  
  María Dolores del 

Widow of Pedro Engle; residence NAC 1810.1004 46: 839-40 
(2) 

Río, María      
  Encarnación del   

Petitions for payment of shawl BX 1819.0930 63: 388-89 

Riojas,  
   Josefa 

Departs for La Bahía 
 

BX 1817.0814 
 

59: 231-34 
(3) 

Ríos, 
  Antonia de los 

Review of her case against Mauricia Mora NAC 1807.0201 35: 606-08 

Ríos, 
  María Josefa  

Case against Francisco Gutierrez de la Lama, 
accused by her of statutory rape 

LB 1829.0207  119: 889-90 

— — LB 1829.0212 120: 57 
Roberts, Harriet 
(Robert; Hariet) 

Land taxes to be paid by her,Thomas F. McKinney 
and Josefa Gómez 

BX 1830.0429 130: 98-104 
(1) 

— — NAC 1830.0525 130: 686-718 
(2) 
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28 Possible reference to Alamito Creek, which enters the Río Grande River near Presidio, Texas. 

— — NAC 1830.0622 131: 892-909 
(6) 

— — NAC 1830.0803 133: 159-88 
(3) 

Rodríguez,  
  Antonia 

Denies charges of unpaid debt 
 

SF de BX 1814.0412 53: 668-69 

— Sued by María de Jesús Carbajal for money  owed 
by Maríano Rodríguez 

[BX] [1816] 57: 710 

— Asked to admit captive N.p n.d. 168: 702 
Rodríguez,  
  Juana   

Ignacio Chapa petitions to marry her BX 1827.0101 99: 788 

Rodríguez,  
  Juana de Dios 

Petitions for lot at Valero [MNT] [1807] 37: 377-78 

Rodríguez,  
  María Antonia 

Petitions to assume education of nieces SF de BX
  

1813.0922 53: 216-17 

Rodríguez, María  
  Encarnación  

Permission to marry José Menchaca CHI 1801.0727 30: 202-03 

Rodríguez,  
María Egeciaca  

Her case against Dominigo Delgado for possession 
of land 
 

SF, E. 1770.0809 - 
1770.0823 

10: 751-54 

Rodríguez,  
  María Francisca 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 
       

SF de BX 1818.1110 62: 220-58 
(18) 

— Land petitions filed by him (sic), Miguel Delgado 
and others remitted 

BX 1830.0813 133: 492-98 
(2 ) 

Rodríguez, 
  María Inés  

Sumaria against Rafael Chavira for wounding her BX, E. 1820.0726 - 
1820.0731 

64: 869-78 

Rodríguez, 
   María Josefa  

Permission to marry Felipe de la Garza Cmp. de 
Alamito28 

1829.0510 122: 291-316 
(2) 

— — BX 1829.0514  122: 445-61 
(8) 
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Rodríguez,  
  María Josefa  

Her list of goods sent to Laredo BX 1829.0910 125: 477  

—   Reports on husband's property while out of country BX 1829.1110 126: 668-70 
(2) 

—   Petitions for permission for husband's return from 
exile    

BX 1830.0104 127: 613-25 
(2) 

— — LVC 1830.0122 128: 24-25 
—  
    

Her, Ramón Arocha’s and Felipe Elúa’s statements 
remitted to [José María Viesca]                                                                    

BX 1831.0103 137: 615-21 
(4) 

Rodríguez,  María   
   Luisa (slave)  

Rosalia Rodríguez' bond for freedom of her slave SF 1808.0305 37: 810-12 

Rodríguez,  
  María Rita  

Owed debt by Manuel Aldrete for furniture and 
saddle 

RG 1826.1103 98: 196-197  

— — RG 1826.1118 98: 609-11 
— — BX 1826.1126 98: 780-86 

(3) 
— —s BX 1827.0708 105: 134-40 

(2) 
— — LAR 1827.0716 105: 425 
— — LAR 1827.8716 105: 429 
— — RG 1827.0726 105: 745-46 
Rodríguez, 
  María Teresa 

Proceedings on her petition BX 1778.0113 
 

12: 190 

Rodríguez,  
  Maríana  

Daughter of Antonio Rodríguez; proceedings on 
divorce from Manuel Barrera 

BX 1829.0227 120: 285 

— — [BX] 1830.1113 136: 234-35 
— — Camargo 1830.1125 136: 530-31 
— — MNT 1830.1222 137: 244 
— — Camargo 1831.0207 138: 585-88 
— To testify in case against José Candido de Arcos MAT 1830.1027 135: 736-37 
Rodríguez,  
  Rosalia  

Petitions for town lot 
 

BX, E. 1777.0724 11: 1025-26  

— — BX, E. 1777.0729 11: 1027-28 
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— Wife of Juan José Sanchez; demands claim granted 
father-in-law Miguel de Castro. 

SA de BX, 
CHI, E.   

1778.0103 - 
1778.0725 

12: 130-31 

Rodríguez,  
  Teodora  

Mother, Luisa Ortiz, declares that daughter is 
responsible for sum borrowed from maestro 
sombredero to help her 

[BX?] n.d. 168: 859 
 

     
Rodríguez de 
Bustillo[s], 
  María Antonia 

Investigation of letter from José Sandoval 
 

BX 1829.0802 124: 564-67 

— — BX 1829.0803 124: 625-31 
Rolén,  
  María Trinidad 

Francisco Gómez requests permission to marry her 
 

[BX] 1827.1021 108: 522 

Romero,  
  Juana 

Accuses Francisco Pérez of incest NAC 1826.0408 91: 426-27 

Romero,  
  María Antonia 

Military pension RG 1826.0918 96: 985-86 

— — LVC 1828.0923 116: 817 
Romero,  
  Micaela  

Her claim againist Santiago Flores sent to 
commandant and justicia of San Fernando de Agua 
Verde 

[BX] 1812.0722 51: 945 

Rosa,  
  María de la 

Report on her and Guillermo Navarro ordered BX 1820.1115 65: 802-04 
(7) 

Rosa y Rúa, 
  Rosa de la 

Grants freedom to slave, María Rosa de la Rosa y 
Valle 
 

SF de BX
  

1823.0719 75: 260-64 

Rosa y Valle, 
  María de la 
(slave) 

Granted freedom by Rosa de la Rosa y Rúa SF de BX 1823.0719 75: 260-64 

Rúa, Luisa      
  Gertrudis de la 
  (La Rúa,    
  Larúa; Luis) 

Demands payment of debt owed deceased husband, 
Francisco de la Rosa, by Texas overnment 
 

CHI 1810.0123 44: 1-3 (2) 
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— — SF de BX 1810.0803 46: 258-60 
— — BX 1812.0926 52: 638-39 
— — MNT 1817.0204 57: 922-23 
—   Return to New Orleans BX 1810.0219 44: 293 
 — BX 1810.0221 44: 318-26 

(1) 
—   — CHI 1810.0319 44: 524-26 

(1) 
— Mail from Louisiana for her and M. de Salcedo's 

wife 
NAC 1810.0528 45: 419 

—   Requests passport for husband, Maríano Miguel    
López, to represent her in Louisiana on business of 
her former husband 

SF de BX 1811.0608 48: 691-93 

— On her second marriage and appointment of 
Manuel  de Iturricastillo as tutor of her children 

[BX] 1812.0304 50: 592-603 
(15) 

— — BX 1817.0227 58: 40-49 (1) 
—  [M. de Salcedo] orders Juan Ignacio Arrambide to 

pay her 
BX 1812.0926 52: 638-39 

— María Olalla Alcántara’s claim against her BX 1817.0319 58: 140-41 
— Sells slave, María de Jesús Hinojosa, to Victor  

Blanco 
BX 1820.0520 64: 363-65 

Ruiz,  
  María Antonia 
(Manuel Antonio) 

Trust fund deposited in accounts of  Tobacco Dept. 
of Béxar 
 

BX 1829.0117 119: 313-14 

— — BX 1829.0117 119: 315-16 
— Legacies of her, Concepción Estrada and Félix 

Menchaca 
BX 1829.0519 122: 546-47 

— Church legacies left by her, Luis Mariano 
Menchaca and Félix Menchaca 

BX 1831.0427 140: 402-04 
(2) 

— — GOL 1831.0603 141: 605-08 
(2) 

— — BX 1831.0607 141: 749-52 
(2) 
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Ruiz, 
 Victoriana 

Orders for auction of stock of her and Nicolás Ruiz, 
traveling to Louisiana 

CHI 1802.0127 30: 541 

 Sabia,  
  María 

She and María Josefa Hernández demand that A.  
Martínez pay for animal he killed 

SF de BX 1822.0830 72: 697-98 

St. Denis, 
  María 

License to take stock to Natchitoches CHI 1779.0817 13: 299  

— — BX 1779.0915 13: 427-28 
St. Denis, 
  María de Nieves 

Manuel Antonio Soto Bermúdez petitions to marry 
her 

NAT, E. 1754.0520 9: 497-98 

Salamé,  
  María Antonia 

Widow of José María de Puga; military pension 
 

MAT 1830.1018 135: 491-98 
(2) 

Salinas,  
  Gertrudis  

Widow of Francisco Collantes; grants power of 
attorney to Barón de Bastrop   
   

SF de BX, E. 1824.0918 77: 860-61 

Salinas,  
  María Josefa 

Legality of marriage to Manuel Mojarrás 
questioned 

BX 1816.[10]13 57: 170 

Sánchez,  
  Barbara 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1115 62: 359-68 
(4) 

Sánchez,  
  Juana Francisca 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1112 62: 305-26 
(11) 

Sánchez, María 
Dolores  

She and Victoriano Samarripa petition for building NAC 1829.0427 121: 904-09 
(3) 

— — NAC 1829.0609 123: 361-72 
(5) 

— Granted land with Thomas McKinney and others BX 1830.0526 130: 746: 50 
(2) 

Sánchez,  
  María Josefa 

Sumaria against her and Pablo Maldonado for 
robbery of Juan José Elguézabal’s clothing and 
money 
 

SRO 1829.0213 120: 58-70 
(3) 

— — BX 1829.0301 120: 393-96 
(2) 
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Sánchez, María   
   [del] Refugio 

Husband, Severo Ruiz, pays monthly allowance to 
her and family in Monterrey; includes complaints 
against him for negligence and receipts of payment 

BX 1829.0406 121: 341 

— — SA de VAL 1829.0408 121: 367-68 
— — BX 1829.0605 123: 152-59  

(4) 
— — Tampico 1829.1227 127: 331-32 
— — MNT 1830.0119 127: 981-82 
— — BX 1830.0120 127: 1002-08 

(3) 
— — BX 1830.0122 128: 29-31  
— — BX 1830.0122 128: 36 
— — MNT 1830.0218 128: 549-50 
— — SA de VAL 1830.0219 128: 580 
— — MNT 1830.0318 129: 142-43 
— — MNT 1830.0319 129: 155-56 
— — GOL 1830.0320 129: 164-65 
— — BX 1830.0410 129: 706-08 
— — MNT 1830.0414 129: 786-87 
— — MNT 1830.0418 129: 874-75 
— — MNT 1830.0521 130: 586-87 
— — MNT 1830.0919 134: 522-23 
— — MNT 1830.1209 136: 960-63  

(2) 
— — MNT 1831.0113 137: 813-14 
— — MNT 1831.0217 138: 851-52 
— — MNT 1831.0303 139: 176-79 

(1) 
— — MNT 1831.0321 139: 532-33 
— — MNT 1831.0512 141: 35-36 
— — MNT 1831.0620 142: 91-92 
— — MNT 1831.1027 145: 591-92 
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— — MNT 1831.1109 145: 859 
— — MNT 1831.1222 146: 818-19 
— — MNT 1832.0112 147: 298-99 
— — MNT 1832.0216 148: 142-43 
— — MNT 1832.0308 148: 458-59 
— — MNT 1832.0405 149: 128-30 
— — MNT 1832.0726 151: 866-67 
— — MNT 1833.1125 159: 316-17 
— — MAT 1833.1215 150: 580-83 

(2) 
— — BX 1833.1230 159: 737-38 
— — BX 1834.0108 160: 33-34 
— — BX 1834.0127 160: 274-77 

(1) 
— — BX 1834.0127 160: 278  
— — MAT 1834.0217 160: 502 
— — MAT 1834.0531 161: 764-70 

(4) 
— Ruiz requests permission to go to Monterrey to 

arrange property settlement and divorce 
SA de VAL 1829.0625 123: 743-44 

— —                                         BX 1829.0704 123: 986-87 
Sandoval,  
  María Antonia 

Permission to marry Juan Antonio Urrutia 
 

BX 1829.0730 124: 472 

Santa,  
  María 

To testify in trial against Francisco Molina 
 

BX 1815.1220 56: 105-07 
(2) 

Santa,  
  María Josefa de 
la 

License to marry Bernardo Fernández 
 

CHI 1778.0821 12: 368-69 

— — BX 1779.0112 12: 763-64 
Santa María, María  
  del Refugio  de    
  Jesús (Indian)  

Transferred to Pedro Villarreal at Boca de Leones 
 

CHI 1778.0430 12: 270 

— —                                                  CHI 1778.0531 12: 290 
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Santos,  
  Antonia de los 

To marry Cipriano del Toro 
 

NAC 1799.0714 28: 956 

 Santos,  
  Gertrudis de los 

Proceedings against her, her husband (Antonio 
Leal), Santiago Cook and others accused of 
conspiracy with Felipe Nolan 

BX 1801.0116 29: 870-71 

— — SF, E. 1801.0123 -
1801.0913 

29: 880-922 

— — CHI 1801.0217 29: 955-56 
— — CHI, E. 1801.0317 29: 1008-10 
— — BX 1801.0416 30: 13-14 
— — BX 1801.0416 30: 15-16 
— — BX 1801.0425 30: 36 
— — CHI 1801.0525 30: 87-88 
— — BX 1801.0728 30: 213 
— — CHI 1801.0901 30: 272-73 
— — NAC 1801.0918 30: 309-10 
— — BX 1801.0929 30: 323 
— — BX 1801.1029 30: 392-93 
Santos, María    
   Guadalupe de los 

Antonio Alconchel petitions to marry her LB 1820.0608 46: 467-70 
(2) 

— — BX 1820.0611 64: 501-02 
Santos Coy, 
Barbara de los     

Claim against her by Miguel Pando 
 

SF de BX 1815.0909 55: 638-39 

Santos Coy, María 
Eulogia  de los  

She and Fernando Carrillo grant daughter, María 
Concepción, permission to marry soldier of 
Company of Béxar 

BX 1829.0114 119: 201 

Santos Coy, María 
Gertrudis de los 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion     

SF de Bx 1818.1106 62: 110-13 

— Will                                                  SF de BX 1828.1004 117: 78-82 
Santos Coy, María  
  Luisa de los  

Petitions for widow's pension   LB 1817.0920 59: 562-63 

— — LB 1826.0131 88: 958-59 
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— — BX 1826.0213 89: 572-80 
(2) 

— — LB 1826.0227 89: 925-27 
— — BX 1826.0315 90: 477 
— — BX 1826.0320 90: 684 
Sarah (slave) Ezekiel Hays petitions for her return, taken to 

Texas by Patrick Henry Herndon 
MAT 1831.0810 143: 614-15 

— — MAT 1831.1013 145: 314-15 
— — BX 1832.0124 147: 553-54 
— — BX 1832.0125 147: 588-89 
— — BX 1832.0125 147: 590-91 
— — AUS 1832.0218 148: 189-98 

(1) 
— — AUS 1832.0221 148: 208-10 
— — BX 1832.0509 149: 921-22 
Saucedo,  
  María Gertrudis 

Juan Francisco Collantes petitions for possession of 
house claimed by her 

BX 1821.1211 69: 434-35 

— — BX 1821.1216  69: 507-14 
(1) 

—  BX 1821.1216  69:507-14 
(2) 

 — BX 1821.1217 69: 533-34 
— — BX 1821.1218 69: 543-45 
— — BX 1821.1219 69: 580-81 
— — BX 1821.1222 69: 623-24 
— — MNT 1822.0116 70: 181-86 
— — MNT 1822.0116 70: 264-77 

(3) 
Saucedo,  
  María Guadalupe 

Informs Tomás Saucedo of family's extreme need 
 

RG 1823.0321 74: 420-22 

Seguín,  
  María Josefa 

Francisco Rodríguez Rojo petitions to marry her 
 

BX 1822.1225 73: 794-812 
(1) 
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(Same as Carrillo y 
Seguín, María 
Josefa?) 
 — SAL 1823.0207 74: 160-167 

(3) 
 — BX 1823.0305 74: 313-16 

(2) 
 Letter to J. E. Seguín concerning son, Salvador SAL 1824.0913 77: 831-33 
 Reconciliation with husband, Vicente Flores                            BX 1826.0929 97: 202-03 
  — BX 1826.1009 97: 497-98 
 — BX 1826.1027 97: 1018-19 
 Provided document by Miguel Arciniega without 

authority 
BX 1826.1012 97: 593-94 

 — BX 1826.1012 97: 595-96 
 Letter to J.E. Seguín on family and political 

conditions at Saltillo 
SAL 1834.0719 162: 563-65 

Seguín,  
  María Manuela 

Accounts of property taxes paid 
 

NAC 1830.1012 135: 362-82 
(1) 

— — BX 1830.1028 135: 762-65 
(1) 

— — BX 1830.1108 136: 133 
— — NAC 1830.1123 136.468-87 

(1) 
Seguín,  
  Paula 

Tomás Flores discusses her and other matters 
 

MNC 1821.0512 67: 560-63 
(1) 

Serna, María   
  Antonia  

Passport MNT 1821.0424 67: 388-90 
(1) 

Smith,  (Esmi) 
  Serafina 

Denied settlement at Trinidad de Salcedo and 
expelled to Louisiana with Tomás Daillalet and 
others 

BX, E. 1809.0124 40: 22 

—                                                   BX 1809.0204 40: 95-96 
—  TDS 1809.0222 40: 266: 71 

(1)_ 
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— . TDS 1809.0322 40: 694-705 
(5) 

Soe, 
  Margarita 

Patricio Soe’s children, Santiago, Juan and 
Margarita, summoned as witnesses 

GOL 1832.0615 150: 778-83 
(3) 

Solis,  
  Juana María 

Grants permission for marriage of Alejandra 
Delgado to Jesús Arrañaga 

BX  1835.0506 165: 29 

Soria y 
Bustamante,  
  Maríana 

Mother of Agustín Martínez de Lejarza; receives 
deductions from his salary 

MAT 1830.0728 132: 886-90 
(2) 

— — BX 1830.0818 133: 641-42 
— — NAC 1830.0928 133: 820-21 
— — NAC 1830.1221 137: 234-35 
— — LVC 1831.01[22] 138: 120-22 
Sosa,  
  María Antonia de 

[M. de Salcedo's] letter on her complaint BX 1809.0112 39: 972 

— Mother of María Secundina Cruz; case against 
Miguel de los Santos for raping daughter 

N.p. [1809] 171: 199-200 

— Sumaria against Joaquín Rodríguez and Joaquín 
Aguilar for stolen meat found in her and Francisco 
Guerra’s houses                                         

BX, E. 1818.0331 - 
1818.0411 

169: 148-99 

Sosa,  
  Rosa de  

Record of members of families of her, Gregorio 
Herrera and others totaling 215 persons 

N.p. [1822] 73: 897 

Sotelo,  
  Ciriaca 

 Case against Victor Delgado for her murder                                            SF de BX, E. 1824.1002 - 
1824.1027 

78: 43-56 

Sotelo,  
  María Francisca 

Grants son, Francisco Cortinas, permission to 
marry 

[BX] 1835.0130 163: 979 

Soto, 
  Bárbara 

Petitions that husband, Francisco Marrisso at Janos, 
support her and family; this petition is result of 
revocation of earlier arrangement by Antonio 
Texada 

N.p. n.d. 168: 670 

Soto de Brioles,     
  Concepción   

Wife of Benjamin Brioles?; reports that tobacco 
delivered to captain of Pomona was remitted to 
Rafael [Antonio] Manchola 

GOL 1831.0214 138: 775-76 
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29 Hormingas (Ormingas), a land grant of 52,390 acres in Louisiana parishes of Sabine and Desoto claimed by Cesar and 
Louis Lafitte in 1796. 

Soto Lafitte,    
  Maríane 

Requests freedom for husband, [Pablo Lafitte] NAC 1801.0519 30: 82-83 

— Claims land at Las Hormigas29 NAT 1817.0512 58: 595-96 
Tijerina,  
María Juana 

Case against Vicente  Micheli for return of lot and 
house 

BX, E. 1809.0126 - 
1809.0324 

40: 38-52 

— Micheli’s case against her for property [SF de BX], 
E. 

1812.0426 - 
1812.0428 

51: 74-75 

Tola,  
  Juana 

Her petition received SF 1827.0526 103: 688 

Toro, 
  Margarita del 

Grants permission for daughter, María Petra de la 
Cruz, to marry Claudio Villarreal 

BX 1832.0214 148: 101-02 

— — BX 1832.0215 148: 0116 
     
Toro, 
  María del 

Case aagainst Juan Ignacio de Arrambide for return 
of furniture                                               

V. de la 
TRN, E. 

1807.0513 - 
1807.0603 

36: 74-77 

— Case against her and Agapito Alameda for murder 
of Santiago de la Garza 

SF de BX, E. 1824.0805 - 
1825.1222 

77: 628-51 

Toro, 
María Rafaela del 

Dionicio García de Rivera petitions to marry her, 
daughter of Bernardo del Toro and María Antonio 
Maldonado; includes consent of parents and 
Gertrudis Ancira, baptismal record and 
investigation of origin and religious beliefs 

MNC 1824.0122 76: 234-35  
(1) 

—  MNC 1824.0122 76: 234-35  
(2) 

—  MNC, E. 1824.0320 - 
1824.0324 

76: 666-75  
(3) 

—                                                   MNC, E. 1824.0320 - 
1824.0324 

76: 666-75 
(4) 

—  MX 1824.0504 76: 952-53 
—  MNC 1824.0524 77: 157-62 
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—  SAL 1824.0531 77: 185-89 
(1) 

—  MX 1824.0723 77: 529-30 
— Inquires about going to Texas RG 1827.07?  
Torres, 
  Guadalupe 

Widow in need of food and necessities [San Juan  
Capistrano 
M.] 

n.d. 168: 221-22 

Torres, 
  Juana 

Pedro Nolasco Carrrasco’s case against her for theft SF, E. 1806.1117 - 
1807.0127 

35: 181-98 

Torres,  
  María Josefa  

Land petition NAC 1827.1113 109: 275-79 

Toscana,  
  María Gertrudis 

Consents to marriage of María Encarnación Pérez 
and José Antonio Hernández 

BX 1830.0324 129: 244-45 
(2) 

Travieso,  
  Estefania 

Decree on her lot SF de BX  1810.0811 46: 358 

Travieso,  
  Juana 

José Angel Navarro receives payment of her debt BX 1814.0315 53: 0577 

Travieso,  
  Justa 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion                                  

SF de BX 1818.1109  
 

62: 138-92 
(28) 

Travieso,  
  María Josefa 

Court costs of María del Refugio Ramírez’ case 
against her 

LVC 1829.0418 121: 666-67 

Travieso,  
  María Nieves  

Petitions return of confiscated mule BX, E. 1822.0103 - 
1822.0123 

70: 68-71 

Treviño,  
  Juana María 

Her and Roberto San Miguel’s letter to Señora 
[García de Trespalacios] describing her daughters 
and himself 

LAR 1822.1007 73: 82-83 

Treviño,  
  María Florencia 

Affdavits identifying her and Cayetano Menchaca 
as Spaniards 

BX, E. 1781.0902 - 
1781.0905 

14: 871 

Treviño,  
  María Rafaela de 

Of Revilla, widow of José Antonio Benavides; 
requests payment of debt from estate of deceased 
brother, Vicente Treviño of Béxar 

GUE 1829.0406 121: 331-33 

— — GUE 1829.0506 122: 720-21 
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Trinidad,  
  María de la  

Petition for anulment of marriage between her and 
Indian of San Antonio Mission 

BX, E 1781.0604 – 
1781.1129 

14: 800-23 

Trudeau,  (Trudó) 
  Margarita 

Her and Carlos de la Garza’s petitions remitted 
  

LB 1826.0914 96: 881-87 
(3) 

Ugalde, María     
  Gertrudis 

Pension CHI 1812.1028 52: 923-27 
(1) 

Uriegas,  (Uriaga) 
  María Hilaria 

José María Salinas testifies against her and 
Francisco Gallardo 

LVC 1832.0204 147: 861-63 
(2) 

— Returned money BX 1832.0223 148: 218-19 
— — BX 1832.0225 148: 259-60 
— —                                            BX 1832.0225 148: 261-64 
Urrutia,  
  Juana de 

Sells lot and house to Vicente Álvarez Travieso; he 
paid debt of forty pesos owed by her deceased 
father to Manuel Mansana of Saltillo and ten pesos 
to her.   

V. de SF de 
[BX] 

n.d 170: 456-57 

Urrutia,  
  María Catalina de 

Requests investigation of ownership of mares BX 1797.1202 28: 1-2 

— — BX 1797.1227 28: 52 
Urrutia, María    
  Francisca  

Widow of José de Jesús Aldrete; petitions for his 
back pay and pension 

LB 1825.1017 85: 208-21 

— — SF 1825.1116 85: 981-84 
(2) 

— — LB 1825.1210 86: 638-40 
— — RG 1826.0113 88: 150-88 

(18)  
— — SRO 1826.0115 88: 291-96 

(2) 
— — SRO 1826.0116 88: 306-09 

(1) 
— — MX 1826.0301 90: 1-4 (2) 
— — RG 1826.0328 90: 824-35 

(6) 
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Urrutia,  
  María Gertrudis 

Petitions for return of property LB 1822.0120 70: 343-57 
(2) 

— — LB 1825.0508 81: 78-88 (5) 
— —                                                  SAL 1825.0616 81: 854-59 

(1) 
— — LB 1825.0708 82: 476-83 

(4) 
— — SAL 1825.1013 85: 47-50 (3) 
— Of Valle de Santa Rosa and widow of José María 

Sánchez; accuses Matías Jiménez of embezzlement 
of half her pension 

SAL 1826.0421 91: 951-55 
(1) 

— —                                            RG 1826.0502 92: 379 
— — SF 1826.0508 92: 590-92 
— —                                                  N.p. [1826] 170: 785-87 
— Petition remitted to J.A. Saucedo LB 1827.0511 103: 235-41 

(4) 
Urrutia,  
  María Ignacia de 

Requests license to round up unbranded stock BX, SA de 
BX, E. 

1797.0114 - 
1797.0118 

27: 24-25 

-- Baltasar Flores’ testimony in investigation of 
limpieza de sangre of José Clemente de Arocha, her 
and Simón Francisco de Arocha’s son 

[SF de BX] n.d. 170: 419-21 

Urteaga,  
  Juana 

Adopted daughter of Luisa Urteaga; Dionicio 
Iglesias petitions to marry her; includes approal of 
J. Parra                                                 

[BX]  n.d. 168: 662 

Urteaga,  
  María Luisa (de) 
(Doña Luisita) 

Approval of Elozúa’s marriage to her RG 1825.0715 82: 686-87 
(2) 

— — RG 1825.0915  84: 297 
— Congratulatory messages on marriage SF 1825.0921   84: 464-67 

(1) 
— — SF 1825.0921   84: 464-67 

(2) 
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30 Well-know place for crossing the Colorado River into east Texas. 

— — SF 1825.0921   84: 464-67 
(3) 

 Escort    MNC 1826.0129 88: 864-76 
(6) 

— Letter from S. lópez to Elozúa including regards to 
her and family 

Ar. Blanco 1828.1028 117: 492-501 
(5) 

— Pedro Rodríguez delivers Elozúa letter to her BX 1829.0203 119: 0812  
— Petition for widow’s military pension; includes 

request that petition be forwarded to president since 
she has received nothing since husband’s death 

BX 1834.0318 160: 785-87  

— — GOL 1834.0529 161: 751-52 
— — MNT 1834.0626 162: 148-49 
— — GOL 1834.0719 162: 572 
— — BX 1834.1214 163: 481-82 
— — BX 1834.1215 163: 487-95 

(3) 
— — LVC 1834.1228 163: 596-607 

(8) 
— — BX 1835.0531 165: 382-83 
— — Boca del Río 

Bravo 
1835.0609 165: 514-19 

(1) 
— Permission to transport listed goods to Guerrero BX 1835.0711 165: 908-09 
— Dionicio Iglesias petitions to marry Juana Urteaga, 

her adopted daughter; includes approal of J. Parra                                                                                        
[BX]  n.d. 168: 662 

Vachon, 
  Rosa Francoise 
[Francisca] 

Wife of Juan Eugenio Michamp; settlement 
petitions of her, Miguel de la Rúa and others 

Puesto del 
ATS, E.30 

1808.1011 - 
1808.1012 

38: 793-98 
(4) 

— — [BX] [1808.1011] 38: 799 
— — CHI 1808.1018 38: 842 
— Given supplies and funds TDS 1809.0523 41: 447-54 

(4) 
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31  Montepío, a charitable fund for dependents such as widows and orphans. 

— — TRN 1809.0920 42: 874-76 
(1) 

Valdés,  
  Clara  

Mother of Francisco Medina; receives aid SLP 1826.0103 87: 679-84 
(3) 

Valdés,  
  Josefa 

Salvador Flores requests extension to pay debt on 
Josefa Valdés’ house                                       

GOL 1830.0803 133: 139-40 

Valdés,  
  María Polonia 

Manuel Montalbo petitions to marry her BX 1835.0414 164: 747-49 

Vargas,  
  Margarita 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX [1818.1109] 62: 193-212 
(11) 

Vásquez,  
  Manuela  

Sumaria against her, Facundo de la Garza and 
others for attempted escape to U.S. 

LB, E. 1821.0409 – 
1821.0415 

67: 302-19 

— — LB 1821.0427 67: 442-54 
(3) 

Vásquez,  
María Magdalena 

Asks governor of Texas for permission to send 
agent to San Juan Bautista to collect debts 

BX, E. 1791.1121 21: 915-16  

Vásquez,  
  María Mauricia 

Antonio Munive petitions to marry her RG 1826.1127 98: 798-99 
(2) 

Vielma,  
  Felipa (Bielma,     
   Bierna) 

Transfer to Monclova because of scandalous 
conduct 
 

BX 1815.0102  
 

54: 597-99 
(1) 

— — MNC 1815.0129 54: 700-02 
(1) 

Villanueva,  
  Josefa 

Granted mont pio31 BX 1831.0417 140: 158-66 
(4) 

— — GOL 1831.0505 140: 717-58 
(2) 

Villanueva de 
Zárate,  
  Timotea 

Widow’s pension                                                LVC 1828.0610 114: 290-310 
(10) 
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Villarreal,  
  María Gertrudis     
 (Gertudis) 

Widow’s pension MNT 1814.0430 53: 803-04 

Villaseñor,     
  Concepción 

Daughter of Ignacio Villaseñor and spouse of José 
Encarnación Vázquez; imprisonment, escape and 
sumaria against Vázquez for assaulting her; 
includes her attempts to secure clothing and 
furniture 

LB 1822.0720 72: 274-75 
 
 

— — LB 1822.0720 72: 276 
— — LB 1822.0721 72: 280-81 
— — [BX] 1822.0724 72: 315 (1) 
— — BX 1822.0724 72: 316-17 

(2) 
— — LB 1822.0729 72: 346-50 

(1) 
— — BX 1822.0731 72: 388-89 

(1) 
— — SF de BX 1822.0826 72: 651-52 
— — BX 1822.0826 72: 657-60 

(1) 
— — BX 1822.0827 72: 683-84 

(2) 
— — LB 1822.0831 72: 708-14 

(4) 
— — BX 1822.0909 72: 815-16 
— — BX 1822.0910 72: 818-23 

(3) 
— — BX 1822.0910 72: 825-31 

(1) 
— — LB 1822.0914 72: 844-53 

(2) 
— — LB 1822.0915 72: 856-61 

(1) 
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32 Refers to Mazatlán, Texas, located in central Duval County—not the coastal city of Sinola, Mexico. 

— — LB 1822.0915 72: 865-66  
— — LB 1822.1013 73:131-41 

(4) 
— — BX 1822.1023 73: 245-53 

(1) 
— — LB 1822.1228 73: 634-37 

(2) 
— — LB 1823.0511 74: 790 
— — BX 1823.0515 74: 802-03 
— — LB 1823.0608 74: 995-63 

(5) 
White,  
  Cristina 

In Pedro Walker’s translation of documents Mazatlán32 1810.0418 44: 798-809 

Zamarripa,    
  Bernarda 

Wife of Aniceto Arteaga; monthly deductions from 
his salary for her approved 

MAT 1830.0821 133: 724-25 

Zambrano,     
 Anastacia 

Her case against Prudencio Rodríguez for slander BX, E. 1791.0628 - 
1791.0713 

21: 499-510 

— José María Martínez and Isidra Montemayor’s case 
against her for guardianship of child; includes her 
appeal 

SF de BX 1827.0813 106: 297-98 

—      —                                             SF de BX 1827.0816 106: 415-18 
Zambrano,  
  Casiana 

Deceased; letter to Fernando de León on her 
property 

BX 1835.0813 166: 338 

Zambrano,  
  Eustacia 

Petitions for return of property lost during Anglo-
American invasion 

SF de BX 1818.1110 62: 220-58 
(21) 

Zambrano,  
  María Josefa 

On her petition LAR 1814.0405 53: 621-59 
(1) 

— — BX 1814,0416 53: 715-39 
(6) 

— On her case against José María Navayra for cattle 
theft 

MNT 1814.0803 54: 96-97 
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Zendeja, (Sandeja) 
  Rosalia de la 

Ramón Fernández to pay her for slave SAL 1805.0701 33: 382-83 

— Wife of Tomás Travieso; petitions that husband be 
allowed to return to Béxar to retire 

SAL 1808.0302 37: 791-92 

Zendejas,   
  Gumercinda 

Wife of Maríano Campuzano; paid allotment from 
his salary 

LVC 1835.0216 164: 153-54 

— — LVC 1835.0221 164: 187-92 
(2) 

— — MAT 1835.0226 164: 266-67 
— — BX 1835.0323 164: 516-20 

(3) 
                                                      
     


